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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to
which a high investment risk may be attached. In particular, companies may
list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any ol

forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the
emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or
countries in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than

is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM. The principal means of information
dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by the
Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should
note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-
date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the
contents of this document, makes no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this document.

This document, for which the directors of Proactive Technology Holdings
Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange for the
purpose of giving information with regard to Proactive Technology Holdings
Limited. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this
document is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading;

(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
in this document misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this document
have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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MISSION
STATEMENT

Proactive’s mission is to provide interactive
telecommunications and technology solutions to
enterprises in the Asia Pacific region to enhance
business value and customer satisfactions. Proactive
commits to empowering its customers with the
ability to absorb and take advantage of the latest
technologies by providing top quality
telecommunications, information technology and
computer telephony solutions. It is the mission of
the company to build on its existing position in the
industry to become the leading Tele-Commerce
technology and service provider in the Asia Pacific

region.

Proactive is a pioneer in navigating this new
market with solid records in offering cost effective
and scaleable solutions to multinational

corporations, carriers and service providers.
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Proactive was founded by a group of experts in telecommunications and information technology in 1992.
Over the years, Proactive has designed and developed a wide range of value-added telecommunications and
computer telephony solutions and established longstanding partnerships with a number of industry leaders
such as Lucent Technologies, Agere System, Nortel Networks, Intel, Microsoft, Oracle, Rockwell FirstPoint

Contact, Captaris and GN Netcom.

Today, the telecommunications solutions developed by Proactive serve many major fixed and mobile carriers,
and VolP operators in the Asia Pacific region. Its enterprise computer telephony solutions are deployed by
well-known multinational corporations from a wide spectrum of industries including banking, finance,

utilities, education, transportation, government...etc.

Proactive is committed to providing the industry with world class technology and quality services based on
its thorough understanding of its customers’ businesses and their needs. Its dedication to product research

and development is another key factor contributing to its success.

Firmly rooted in Hong Kong, Proactive has recorded continuous growth since its establishment in both its
telecommunications and computer telephony revenue from the local market. It has recently begun its pursuit
of expanding its businesses in the Greater China. Besides, in order to develop its businesses in a more
efficient manner and improve after sales services in China, Proactive has boosted and consolidated the
market position of its two representative offices in Beijing and Shanghai, but also set up a supporting office
in Guangzhou to provide “One Stop Service” for customers. To expedite its businesses expansion, Proactive
further strengthened its financial through securing the listing on the GEM board of The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited in May 2000.

Proactive’s mission is to become the leading Tele-Commerce technology and service provider in the Asia
Pacific region. Leveraging the strong foundation in both information technologies and telecommunications it
has built and reinforced over the years, Proactive will continue to diversify its businesses geographically and

exploit new high-growth business opportunities in this ever-changing industry.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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owned foreign investment enterprise
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Chairman’s Message IR ®REE

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

2001 was undoubtedly a difficult year. There were signs of an economic slowdown, with global economic
growth dropping substantially in the first half of 2001, the number of unemployment claimants rising and
consumer sentiment falling. Together with the 11th September terrorist attacks in the United States (“US”), it
impacted the US directly at a time when the economy was already weakening. The worldwide business
corporations were therefore challenged by global economic uncertainties. In the Asia Pacific region, the
already weakened Asian economies were inevitably affected by a further weakening in global economic

activities.

Under such adverse market circumstances, the weakness in economic outlook of the technology, media and
telecommunications sector, where we are actively engaged in our business, was accelerated in the aftermath
of terrorist attacks in the US. Technology companies, further hampered by consumers’ cautious spending,

remained at the forefront of the global economic slowdown.

In the Company’s second year as a publicly listed company, Proactive experienced a substantial drop in
turnover in view of the global slowdown in the telecommunications industry. Total revenue for the financial
year ended 31st December 2001 amounted to HK$49,355,000, a decrease of 23% from 2000’s
HK$63,816,000. The Group incurred a consolidated loss of approximately HK$23,544,000.

Facing a continuously uncertain economic condition, we were pressed for a series of measures to address
operational difficulties. The Group’s operations in Hong Kong and the Asia Pacific region has undergone a
major restructuring during the year under review. Our immediate focus
was to implement cost rationalization measures ranging from rightsize our

regional offices and operation streamlining to capital expenditure controls.
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Chairman’s Message R ®REE

Under this difficult operating environment, | sincerely regret the Company’s performance which has affected
shareholders over the past year. However, | look forward with confidence to 2002, based on the solid
foundation laid by Proactive in the past ten years. Incorporated in Hong Kong in 1992, Proactive was listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (“SEHK”) on 18th May 2000
with the successful issue of 232 million shares raising a net of approximately HK$52 million to fund the
future expansion of the Group. Within a decade of development and with continuous efforts, the Group has

evolved into one of the leading Tele-Commerce technology and service providers in the Asia Pacific region.

Besides, 2002 should be the most remarkable year for us as we are approaching our 10th anniversary since
the establishment of the Group in 1992. In a continuing difficult environment for technology enterprises,
Proactive’s financial profile with strict cost discipline and a solid recurrent revenue base leave us well
positioned against competitors. In possession of a vision — “Leading The Future of Tele-Commerce
Technology”, Proactive should continue to capitalize on this advantage and seek out further growth

opportunities in the years to come.

Looking ahead, we believe Proactive’s future is encouraging given its focus on the Greater China market and
the current healthy growth and prospects for that market, particularly as a result of the China’s entry into the
World Trade Organisation (“WTO”) at the end of 2001. In the future, the Group will strive to further
rationalize its corporate management, improve its product quality and development efficiency, as well as
minimize its production and management cost. These measures will be the fundamentally important in our
pursuit of the ultimate objective of strengthening the Group’s overall competitiveness to meet the future

challenges in the market and turnaround to achieve better returns for shareholders.
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1st Quarter

2nd Quarter

3rd Quarter

4th Quarter

Year ended
31st December

HK$'000 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001

#z

tTZA=t-~R

TER £-ZE £-ZE $£=ZE EJUEN LEE

Turnover EEE 13,659 16,620 12,297 6,779 49,355

Gross Profit £ 8,483 7,648 9,096 4,655 29,882

Gross Profit Margin FEH= 62% 46% 74% 69% 61%
Selling and Administrative 8% RITH

Expenses F 11,308 16,620 11,271 13,619 52,818

Net Loss B 2,752 8,928 1,855 10,009 23,544

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2001
(2000: Nil).

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude to our customers, suppliers, bankers,
investors and business partners for their continuous co-operation, support, patronage and confidence in the
Group. | would also like to thank my colleagues for their efforts and hard work over the past year. They
have made a significant contribution to the year’s results. We invite our investors to join us in what will be

an exciting period of development and growth for the Group in the years to come.

EEETERER T FT_A=THFERELERE(ZZTZZTF : ERE)

RABUBERHEE,  HED RIT REELRFIBEBH BEUREAKZENGE  XF E#NERE-
IS - MBEHEREEBE-—FOTEZ ) MEAFENXEFLHEREN A EERTAFERES
HEMEFAE —BHEGIRR  DEXDERBEMEKDS —F -

Tsang Chi Hin, Vincent & & #
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer = & #7742
Hong Kong, 18th March, 2002 &% - —_ZZT =3+ /\H
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis BE B # R 2

For the year ended 31st December 2001, the Group generated a turnover of approximately HK$49,355,000,
which was down 23% from 2000’s HK$63,816,000. Total consolidated net loss increased substantially to
HK$23,544,000, representing an increase of 297% over the previous year’s net loss of HK$5,925,000. Loss per

share was HK10.15 cents, representing 2.68 times of rise as compared with loss per share of HK2.76 cents in

.'...l"
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2000.
HK'000 Year ended 31st December
B2tZA=1-HLEE
TER 2001 2000 1999 1998
Turnover B8 49,355 63,816 32,623 21,625
(Loss)/Profit (B#B) /&7 (23,544) (5,925) 4349 1.691
(Loss)/Earning per share G} (E5i8) /&7 HK(10.15) cents 1l HK(2.76) cents fll  HK2.34 cents %1l HK0.91 cents 1l
Total assets BEE 47,50 74,642 22,619
Shareholders' equity RRER 32,286 55,978 9,768
Net assets value per share SR AEZ(E HK14.00 cents &1l HK26.10 cents AfL  HK5.26 cents 7l
Cash on hand Aok 23,483 28,122 9,750
Capital expenditures BAX I 5,048 15,004 1,800
Return on equity R M= (0.73x) (0.11x) 0.44x

BEZTT—F+A=+—8B1t AEEESEEENA/ABK49,355,000  RZZTZTEZTFMNAEYK
63,816,0007C N#23% ° 42 A BB LHE E B 23,544,00070 0 W EFEHBM B 5,925,000 11297%
fREBEARI0I5EW - HE ST TFHNEREE2.768 1L LFH2.68(F ©
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis &2 & 55 & & 2 #

TURNOVER BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
EBERBEOM

Computer telephony business

64% BIEFEED

Telecommunication business

BHED

Telecommunications business remains the major revenue contributor of the Group. Turnover of the
telecommunications business for the year was HK$31,633,000, down 27% from the previous year’s figure of
HK$43,122,000, accounting for 64% of total turnover. While the Group’s computer telephony business

attained turnover of HK$17,722,000, representing a drop of 14% against HK$20,694,000 a year earlier.

During the year under review, the global economic downturn had a severe impact on the telecommunications
industry. The negative trends in the regional economies placed price pressures on orders received and
customers were more cautious in purchasing telecommunications and computer telephony products. Therefore,
the demand for telecommunications products and computer telephony products was decreasing dramatical.
Though the cost of sales decreased substantially, average prices for products reduced as well in 2001.

Accordingly, the gross profit fell to approximately HK$29,882,000 from the previous year’s figure of

EANEBDNEREAEENEZRARERE -RERN - EAEFEBSEEBBEE31,633,0000  BEFHWHEE
43,122,000TC M 227%  (EANEB AL ELEL64% - A REBEKESREREDNLERABE17,722,000
JC 0 BEFRTERS H A 20,694,000 T K 14% ©

BEFN 2HEFNESHEATEEIBRENE BEAKENREBEREERNIEEEER —ENEN
UNEEFPHBESHMNEREFERRBEEREE - it ESANEMREFTERNTRPBE K - LiEHE
RARERD  AMERNFHOHEREER ST —FHEERE Bt AEENENBEZFHSNEE



Management’s Discussion and Analysis &2 g

HK$36,652,000 in 2000. However, the Group recorded an increase in gross profit margin, maintaining at a

high level of approximately 61%, which reflected our competitiveness even in a harsh market environment.

Since the Company was listed on the GEM of the SEHK on 18th May 2000 to pave the way for business
expansion, the cost base structure of the Group was enlarged during the year under review. The Group had
moved its headquarters to larger premises and reinforced our market presence in the Asia Pacific region in
2000. In 2001, a substantial rise of expenditure including the cost of premises and the staff, coupled with
the increase of depreciation expenses resulting from the vast capital investment during the market expansion
was registered. Therefore, general and administrative expenses recorded an increase by 20% to HK$51,283,000
from HK$42,765,000 in 2000. The impact from increased expenditure in line with our regional expansion

contributed to the downturn in profit.

Under such a difficult operating environment, to maintain our competitiveness and market position, the
Group exercised prudent measures, in particular, on cost control policies in rationalizing and streamlining
our operations. As at 31st December 2001, we had reduced staff headcount by 53% as compared with the
highest during the year without adversely affecting the Company’s performance, resulting in a boost in
resource management and staff productivity. However, the total operating cost for 2001 still increased to
HK$52,818,000, as compared with the previous year’s figure of
HK$43,444,000.

36,652,0000C T E 4B 29,882,0007T A - AEEANERSFERKIE R -
REFERD61%ZEHKFE  WRUBIAEBEEFETRDELEIFRFES -

BARAR - ZZTFREATNBEETERERSGMAERLTRAEBERMHBE  AEB2XHE&EBRE
BEFANEEEN BMEAEER _ZZTFHAIRBEEIRANORFREMNNATABANTSEREE - B
T FREJEABELA  EFEENFERASNEINS  UKTSBREAEERRENINEHRE -
it —BERITBEEBE ST T FMERES2,765,0007T EF20% - EZEEHS51,283,0007T @ [@ AERA X
EAEAESI BAEERBTH -

REMZERET  RRBEMOBILNDRTSHA - REERTZHEBFEBR - SHIERKRZEHIEE L
BAHEMAERMOEBREE R_ZT—F+_A=+T—H BAMNBEEINHBERAFRNESERKFES3%
MABXEREEZERBRE  TARFRSEMNEREEREIMNEERE - AW HMAR_TZ
—FRMREET L EREBHES52,818,0007T ¢ ¥ K F KB 43,444,0007T ©
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis &2 & 55 & & 2 #

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION
MEEKERBDMN

Australia
Rl 8% bR
Tai \\ 3.8%  E

aiwan
=0 0.2% 8% Singapore
‘\ 6% # I35
6%

Hong Kong
82% B

82% ,

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Hong Kong

Headquartered in Hong Kong where Proactive firmly builds up its core market, accounting for 82% of its
total sales, the Group’s revenue generated from the business in the region was affected with respect to the
fragile global economic backdrop. Hong Kong’s economy slowed down substantially while entering its third
consecutive year of deflation in 2001. The overall telecommunications market remained restrained and the

global demand for telecommunications and computer telephony products was sluggish.

Considering the continuous regional economic downtrend, the Group had taken a more conservative position
and adopted a highly prudent operating philosophy to improve the way in order to deal with a number of
extraordinary challenges caused by the economic downturn impacting both Hong Kong and the Asia Pacific
region. Besides, we actively re-evaluated our management procedures to facilitate decision-making, re-
aligned our sales strategies to consolidate our market position, re-structured and streamlined our organizational
structure to achieve a high level of operational efficiency. The first and foremost measure was to pose a
strict control on costs in human resources and materials. The ongoing rationalization, streamlining of our
operations and corporate-wide cost reductions substantially contributed to improve bottom line performance

for the year.

KL R

v

BAAEERARMAESD YBRI/AKEENZR LTS EHBEETEL82% AREHREERRRKSE - &2
N EBEERARNEBFRNRATZEZE - BER - —FEATEEEF="FHREEREBER  &HE
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis &2 &

With goals in common and with courage and confidence, both management and staff are ready to encounter
the many new challenges brought along by the uncertain business environment. Also, leveraging our
competitive advantages to enhance product quality and service to drive sales, the Group will focus on
market research and development and is fully committed to customer satisfaction.

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

Despite turbulent economic times in the global market, China remains in the spotlight. Its economy grew a
powerful 7.3% last year as the global economy faltered and its Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) was 9.59
trillion yuan. The negative impact brought by the slowdown in the world economy had been offset and the
overall economic performance in the PRC was stable. With deep roots in China, our on-the-ground presence,
in-depth understanding of local conditions and proven ability to deliver comprehensive solutions has
positioned Proactive to capitalize on the favourable business environment and additional business
opportunities in the PRC.

Our first representative office was set up in Shanghai in 1999. In the three years since commencement of
operations, the office in Shanghai has fully supported the Group’s business development of international
leased circuit coordination, project management service, system integration service, local fulfillment service
and local telecommunications service support in the eastern part of China.

At the same time, our development in Beijing also played an important role in the Group for expanding our
business in the northern part of China. In December 2001, our representative office in the region facilitated
an agreement with a leading Internet data center and contact center service provider in Beijing for the
Group. Under the agreement, this service provider gains access to Proactive’s call center technology and
will be working to offer its call center service to its customers. Besides, our
Beijing operation also serves a strategic role to actively develop valuable
connections with the government and worldwide business corporations for
the Group. Foreseeing the potential growth of the representative office in the
region, the Group will continue to boost and consolidate its market position
by expanding its scale together with developing alliances with leading
enterprises. In the future, the Group would lay down appropriate medium
and long-term targets, plans and strategies for the development of PRC.

BEAEE2ZEETILTRAL LtRS5 - REEL  RMCEBRBELESR
BTAHARAEBRETME RO EKE - AR BERMANGFELNBE
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Regional Offices

Other than the business operation in the PRC, the Group has
actively reinforced our market presence in the Asia Pacific region
following the regional expansion plan undertaken from early
2000 onwards. The offices in Australia, Singapore and Taiwan
were established and commenced operations throughout the
year 2001. In an already slowing economy, the Asia Pacific
market also continued to suffer from the continuous global
economic downturn. Revenue derived from the business in
Australia, Singapore and Taiwan for the financial year ended

2001 accounted for approximately 8%, 6% and 0.2% of the total turnover of the Group respectively.

Witnessing the global downturn of telecommunications market, the Group implemented a large-scale
restructuring and streamlining, downsized certain offices that were not operating satisfactorily and posed
strict control on costs to maintain its competitiveness in 2001. During the year under review, the Group
implemented a stringent cost control policy on the business in Australia and scaled down the size of its

business operation in Singapore.

Under the adverse market circumstances, the business environment in Taiwan remained inactive and its
operation did not perform well during the year. However, re-evaluating its business operation in the region,
the Group believes that Taiwan would provide potential opportunities for its business development in the
years to come. Therefore, the management will focus closely on its business operation in this location,
review its business strategy constantly, sharpen decision-making and allow timely response to market changes.
The Group is in firm belief that its business is able to capitalize upon the potential development when

market conditions improve.

|2 15 2 75 % R
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Besides, the Group left aside the plan of setting up the regional offices in Malaysia, Philippines, Thailand
and in other Asian countries as stated in the prospectus to minimize the capital expenditure. The management
will continue to keep an opportunistic outlook in the different markets and capture every opportunity to

explore new markets stimulated by the gradual economy recovery in the Asia Pacific region.

Proactive Cyberspace (Shanghai) Ltd. (“PCS”)

PCS, the Group’s Shanghai arm which was formed by Proactive with Jardine OneSolutin Technology (China)
Limited and the management of PCS in 2000 with specialization in telecommunications solutions, has
picked up a positive business momentum after 15 months of operations. PCS mainly plays a role of expanding
customer base, broadening distribution and sales channels and bringing in new business opportunities for
the Group in the Central China Region. Despite the fact that the year 2001 witnessed a turbulent environment,

PCS did have a smooth year and provided a stable source of revenue to the Company.

In 2001, PCS entered a collaboration agreement with Nexus Community Inc. (“Nexus”), a Korean computer
telephony integration and Internet telephony integration provider to develop and distribute a series of
contact centre and Internet telephony solutions in China. In Addition, PCS also signed a Master Distributorship
Agreement with Tong Guang — Nortel Limited Liability Company to become their master distributor in the
Shanghai Region. With PCS’s comprehensive business network in the PRC, it had already secured several

major contracts by leveraging on such technologies and relationships.

To date, PCS employs over 40 full time management, administrative and engineering staff and serves over
200 customers of all sizes while 80% of customers are multi-national corporations. The Group is optimistic
about the long-term prospects of PCS, and the company’s strategy
for future development which is going to make steady progress
to become a leading company in offering telecommunications

solutions and applications for enterprise customers in China.
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_m— GlobalCall-SCE Architecture
’ GlobalCall-SCE £ #

<« The service application consists of a number of service independent
Your Service Application building blocks (SIBs).
EFRBRA 5 0 PR 2 o 1B 52 R 7 1B 8 AR (S1B) -

P

<l The GlobalCall-SCE executes the SIBs when service triggers are received.

GlobalCall-SCE % 1 W5 5T 5B B GlobalCall-SCE# 77 SIBs -
\_/7 | The GlobalCall call processing module implements the ITU-T Q.931 state
GlobalCall call hi
Processing Software machines.
GlobalCall & & & 12 8 4 GlobalCallE & B # 771 TU-T Q.931 State Machine” ©
Excel Programmable Switching <« The Excel switch communicates with GlobalCall through an Extended
Platform (Lucent) R . . .
Excel T2 MR BT E Application Programming Interface (ExAPI) by sending and receiving
BA3fl (Lucent Technologies) commands via TCP/IP.

Excel switch®] £ GlobalCal |1 {4 % i + i 1B IT % &) /& F B 1 iR 2 12 =0 R @ (ExAP L
EETCP/IPEE REKES -

PRODUCT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2001, the Group’s capital investment was approximately HK$5 million. This investment was mainly used
to improve and renew equipment and machinery for new product development. Of the total amount,
approximately HK$1.2 million was invested in market research and development (“R&D”) in order to enhance
our competitiveness and market position in the region. The professionalism and expertise of the R&D

division will enhance the quality of existing products and the ability to develop new products.

Based on our strengths in combining our extensive design capabilities, system knowledge and valuable
intellectual property, our R&D team has developed a Service Creation Environment (“SCE”) application
under our “GlobalCall IN” product family. In 2001, “GlobalCall IN” was very well received by the major
mobile carriers in Hong Kong and became the mainstream products of the year. Other products are “Web-
based Card Administration”, “GlobalCall SwitchManager”, “Graphical User Interface based GlobalCall SCE”
and “Call Details Record Mediator” launched during the year to meet the needs of different

telecommunications service provider customers.

= m it g B E
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With regard to the computer telephony business, the Group has developed and launched a wide range of
products, including PowerAgent CTI Server, Proactive Soft-phone, Integrated Intelligent Wall-panel Display
and Active Floor Plan to satisfy customers’ demand for high quality and productivity. During the year, the
Group has worked closely with leading technology partners, such as Nortel Networks Company (“Nortel”),
Rockwell FirstPoint Contact (“Rockwell”) and Nexus to further enhance our solutions’ features so as to fulfill
the different requirements of specified customers. Keeping pace with market trends and technological
developments, we will enrich the Group’s product portfolio by launching higher return, more innovative

and market-oriented products for customers.

In Aug 2001, Proactive entered an agreement with Captaris, a unified communications and mobile business
solutions provider. Under the agreement, Proactive was appointed as a distributor for Captaris’s business
communications products, including CallXpress and RightFax in Shanghai. During the period under review,
the co-operation went very well, which not only brought synergies to both companies’ businesses, but also
established a long-term relationship with Captaris to further develop more application software targeted for

enterprises in both fixed and mobile delivery arenas.

Moving into 2002, the Group will continue its commitment to technology development and product
enhancement. However, facing the global economic slump and keeping up with competitions in the regional
market, the Group will maintain a defensive posture with an emphasis on higher return product development
and a consistent business strategy. The Group has been keeping in line with market needs and developed
related information systems, software and other value-added applications, with the objective of providing
comprehensive and innovative solutions to various industries. We are actively expanding the current industry
coverage from banking, finance, insurance, airline and transportation, telecommunications, public and
government sectors etc to education, entertainment and small & medium enterprises. The Group’s strategic
move is to develop some leading-edge applications to fulfill the specific need of our customers and strengthen
its market presence. The management believed that this move would produce positive results within the year
in 2002, significantly enhancing the Proactive’s competitiveness and profit-

|
making capabilities.

MNEREHEBTE  AEBEBERIELEZNEREFER  BEPLAE
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STRATEGIC ALLIANCES AND PARTNERSHIPS

Strategic partners have been playing a key role in the Group’s development. The ability to partner with
leading enterprises brings Proactive access and resources, attributes that will attract global technology
leaders to join the fold. In December 2001, we signed a cooperative agreement with Agere Systems Inc.
(“Agere”), who was separated from Lucent Technologies’ Bell Laboratories and became an operational
independent technology corporation in February 2001. Under the agreement, Proactive has been appointed
to distribute Agere’s Orinoco wireless solutions in the PRC market. Based on Cahners In-Stat Group worldwide
shipment figures in 2000, Orinoco wireless solutions is the industry leader which leads with over 50%
overall market share. Complementing Agere’s advanced technologies in developing and manufacturing
wireless products and our comprehensive network and customer base in the PRC, the co-operation is a

perfect match for the two companies.

Also, we entered into an exciting agreement with Altitude Software (“Altitude”), a technology provider on
contact center solutions, to jointly integrate and fulfill its Unified Customer Interaction™ (“uCl”) product
line in the Greater China market in December 2001. With our broad distribution channels, the co-operation

signified a quantum leap for Altitude’s business development and market coverage in the Greater China.
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At the same time, Proactive is keen to tap partners’ extensive distribution networks to help it to open up the
young but rich potential of the mainland market. With the growing popularity of Internet applications, the
networking products market possesses tremendous potential. The Group has appointed CCT Telecom Holdings
Limited, an integrated telecommunications products and services enterprise, as our sale agent to distribute
our call center solutions and wireless products in the southern part of China, in particular, the Guangdong
province in February 2002.

With the Group’s committed efforts to explore its business, the management will continue to look for new
business opportunities to extend its business network by joint co-operations and partnerships at strategic
locations in the Asia Pacific region.

FUTURE PROSPECT

The coming year appears to present a wide array of opportunities and challenges for the Group. Although
the market environment shows signs of economic recovery in line with the US at the forefront of a potential
global recovery, the market conditions will continue to be tough due to the fact that Asian economies
remain depressed with declining activity and deflation. Our professional and experienced management team
will then remain prudent in the volatile market and will do their best to turn adversity into opportunity.
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Going forward, the PRC is identified to be the key growth driver for Proactive. With China’s entry into the
WTO and Beijing to host the Year 2008 Olympic Games, China’s economic activities stay heightened with
both local and foreign companies exploring this huge potential market for new business opportunities. To
support the opening up of China and its rapid economic development, telecommunications remains one of
the key mandates of the Government. Therefore, capitalizing on our established presence in the PRC, the
management team will bring with it strategic thinking and vision to benefit the growth of the
telecommunications industry, and also respond strategically and rapidly to industry and market changes so

as to enhance the Group’s market position and help to maintain the impetus for profit growth.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS BUSINESS

Although we are faced with a continued unsettled telecommunications market, our outlook for the coming
year is cautiously optimistic. The strategy of Proactive in concentrating on the PRC market is clearly the
right choice when witnessing the sluggish market conditions and cautious customer spending in the Asia
Pacific region last year. Within the PRC itself, its strong GDP growth, together with the market deregulation
in the telecommunications markets, has demonstrated ample scope for further extensive development of
telecommunications and technology products. Despite the Ministry of Information Industry having recently
restructured the telecommunications market which may cause certain hitches when securing new orders, the
telecommunications industry in China remains an area of robust growth. Taking full advantage of its local
niche, Proactive has continued to commit itself to creating new competitive advantages to capitalize upon

the favourable business environment in the development of telecommunications business, in particular the
value-added services sector.
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COMPUTER TELEPHONY BUSINESS

In the years to come, the PRC will continue to be our major market as more and more business corporations
are heading north to further invest in the PRC. At the same time, the PRC economy will continue to develop
and the income and purchasing power of its citizens is constantly rising. The management believes that
there is ample room for Proactive to expand. In order to capture the favourable business opportunities and
develop its businesses in a more efficient manner as well as improving after sales services in the region, we
would set up a new supporting office in Guangzhou, not only to expand our geographical reach in China,
but also to provide our “One Stop Service” for our customers. Besides, this new office is also aimed at
establishing a solid network of relationships with the local telecommunications service providers in the
province. In order to increase the coverage and services in the PRC market, the Group has realigned

resources strategically to build up more partnerships and co-operations there.

MOBILE INTERNET ACCESS AND APPLICATION (“MIAA”) SERVICES

Taking into account the slack growth in the global market demand for mobile Internet access services and
hosting application services, the Group has slowed down the ongoing development of MIAA technologies.
In the future, we will continue to respond to market trends, seeking opportunities to increase the value of
our products through upgrading enhanced services, and new innovations for our investment and management

portfolios.

Looking ahead, in order to achieve the management consistency and to keep up with the market development
needs, the Group constantly reviews its business strategy. Consolidation of our existing business will continue
extending our efficiency and competitiveness while also maintaining and enhancing our leading position in

the Asia Pacific region and bring in better returns to shareholders.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

HK’000 Year ended 31st December

BE+-A=1T—BLLEE
FHET 2001 2000
Total assets BEE 47,521 74,642
Total bank borrowings  #R17 & & 42 58 1,177 9,039
Gearing ratio BEAMBLX 0.001x 0.005x
Total liabilities FEN=R 14,822 18,664
Cash and bank deposits i & & R 17 4 #4 23,483 28,122
Working capital EEED 19,249 38,373
Debt to equity ratio BEHERL X 0.46Xx 0.3x

The Group principally was financed by cash flow generated internally, balance of proceeds from IPO and
short-term bank borrowings.

Though there was a record of loss during the financial year, the Group maintains a very healthy cash
balance. The total assets of the Group as at the end of 2001 was approximately HK$47.5 million. Total bank
borrowings of the Group was approximately HK$1.2 million and the gearing ratio (total long term liability to
total assets less current liability) was accordingly 0.001 times, as compared with 0.005 times in 2000.

Total liabilities of the Group as at 31st December 2001 were approximately HK$14.8 million, decreased by
approximately HK$3.8 million from 31st December 2000.

Cash and bank deposits stood at approximately HK$23,483,000 as at 31st December 2001, or cash per
share of HK$0.10, of which approximately HK$13.6 million and HK$8.2 million was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars respectively.

As at 31st December 2001, the Group had working capital of approximately HK$19.2 million, debt-equity
ratio (total liability excluding minority interests to equity) was 0.46 times against 2000’s 0.3 times. Aggregate
bank facilities was approximately HK$13,000,000 from several banks for overdrafts, loans and trade financing,
of which approximately HK$11,671,000 was unused. Such facilities were secured by pledges of the Group’s
bank deposits of approximately HK$5,892,000. As at 31st December 2001, the outstanding bank overdrafts
was approximately HK$1,177,000 which were wholly repayable within one year.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The reporting currency adopted by the Group was Hong Kong dollars. Majority of the Group’s sales,
receivables, bank borrowings and expenditures were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars. As Hong Kong dollars is closely linked with United States dollars, therefore, foreign currency

exposure to the Group shall be minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31st December 2001, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of the date of this report, the Group has approximately 48 employees in Hong Kong, elsewhere in the
PRC, Australia, Singapore and Taiwan. Remuneration is commensurate with individual qualification and
experience. Salary and wages are normally reviewed annually. To encourage our sales and marketing staff to
generate more business for the Group, they are entitled to receive a commission determined by the executive
directors as an incentive. The non-sales staff are entitled to receive a discretionary bonus as approved by the
executive directors. Including directors’” emoluments, the Group has incurred staff cost of approximately
HK$26,060,000 during the financial year ended 31st December 2001. Other benefits included Hong Kong

Mandatory Provident Fund, medial insurance and share options scheme.

The Group also increased its emphasis on more comprehensive training to enhance employees’ skills and
product knowledge, as well as providing them with development and advancement opportunities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN®WR D

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

Scheduled achievements for the period ended 31st
December 2001 as stated in the Prospectus

Telecommunications Business

1. Launch the GlobalCall IN service creation
environment (SCE) tools

2. Commence developing an IP telephony
gatekeeper switch product

3. Launch a new Proactive Switching System
(PXS 4000)
4. Continue the development of GlobalCall IN

service node which runs on LINUX and UNIX
environment

Computer Telephony Business

1. Commence developing simplified Chinese
character support call center products

2. Complete development of new features for unified
messaging products

3. Commence the development of automatic speech
recognition technology that supports Malay

Actual business progress/change in business
objective (if any) during the period ended 31st
December 2001

Version 1.0 of GlobalCall IN SCE was already
launched in the 2nd quarter of 2001. Enhanced
version 2.0 is expected to be launched in the 2nd
quarter of 2002.

The development of the product is pending which
was due to the market adverse situation.

The PXS 4000 system was already launched in the
4th quarter of 2001.

The development is on-going and expect to launch
the first version in the 3rd quarter of 2002.

Start the development of simplified Chinese character
support call center product based on Rockwell’s and
Nortel’s technology. The target launch date is scheduled
in the Tst quarter of 2002.

The development work for a comprehensive unified
messaging products was completed in the 4th quarter of
2001.

The development work for this product is pending which
was due to the strategy to delay on regional expansion of
the Group.

/Eﬁiu E&Z%I,Ettéx
BRE WFE%EEEE:SS F+ZA=+—-HLEFS
TR ZEE

BAEMMAELRNRER

1. W [GlobalCall IN] R 7FAI &R IET A

2. EZEFHAENPIEFEEBREBRE SR

3. e T A B A B8 K48 (PXS 4000)

4. HEBEREEILINUX] RTUNIXIRETETH

fGIobaICaIl INJ AR 7% &7 2h
EREFERAELRRER
1. EFHEYRERINTRCEREERLDER

2. TR -—AERBERZ AR

3. EFHBEXESRAIXNZ B EES HFERM

ECERE-F+ A=+ -BLEEPBNERSE
1ER

o 2
‘I]

[GlobalCall INJ AR 758l 353 3 T B 5% A 1. OEJ‘EA*
T-FE_FERNEL  HEAZR2.0GFTR
ST _FE_FEHED -

ARTANTHEREZE  ZRERMZIABETELR

% o
AEECR-_ZT—FENFERDEH T ENE
& & (PXS 4000) °

EZﬁEquﬂﬁfEEE’E T AHAATR-FZT_FF
=K o

=FEHELERE

#BRockwell RIET B 2 KM BB - REBEHDZE FHE

XEMRPXFHzEFRETOER LEFAAR-ZFE
—FEF-FEERTS
TENG—ASRBERHBEIFEN _TT-—FE0FE
FEAK

MR AEENEEEREB LNEY  UZHEEROERT
(GINEES 7



MIAA Services development and enhancement

1. Launch the MIAA Services in Taiwan and Australia

2. Continue the development of mobile Internet
security technology product for the MIAA Services

3. Commence the development of the MIAA Services
based on GPRS technology

4. Extend the market coverage of the MIAA Services
for Hong Kong, PRC and Singapore

5. Launch the non-English character support interface
for the MIAA Services

Market penetration

1. Set up regional offices in Korea and Thailand

2. Appoint overseas agents for sales and
marketing in the Asia Pacific region

3. Continue the marketing activities for the
Group’s products by organizing workshops
and participating in trade exhibitions in the
Asia Pacific region

Resources employment

1. Employ additional staff for the Group’s
operations

Management’s Discussion and Analysis &g

Pending. Due to the softening of market demand for MIAA
Services in the Asia Pacific region, the management has
slowed down the development of MIAA Services.

The Group has currently co-operated with Captaris in
developing and providing new mobile delivery solutions
for enterprises customers.

The Group has currently co-operated with Captaris in
developing and providing new mobile delivery solutions
based on GPRS technology for enterprises customers.

The market coverage is extended to the PRC market already
with some potential cases in Beijing.

The interface supporting non-English character was
completed and launched in the 4th quarter of 2001.

The management reviewed the strategy and resolved
to slow down the business development in these two
regions.

Proactive appointed a total of 4 distributors &
resellers in the Asia Pacific region to help us to
enlarge our sales coverage in the region.

The Group organised 4 marketing events in the
Greater China, which mainly co-operated with
partners for promoting the Group’s business and
products.

No. of employees for the Group and its associates as
at the end of 2001 is 115.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
nNEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Tsang Chi Hin, Vincent
Lam Kim Chau, Derek
Lau Kai Shun, Barry
Wong Wai Ho

Pong Kam Wah

Non-executive Directors

Chow Dah Jen, David
Yang Zhenhan*
Wu Suk Ching, Annie*

Robert Brainin Issenman*

* Independent non-executive directors

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Ma Tak Kei, Maggie
Ira Stuart Outerbridge I1* FCIS

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Wong Wai Ho

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
Ma Tak Kei, Maggie

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Yang Zhenhan
Wu Suk Ching, Annie

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Wong Wai Ho
Lau Kai Shun, Barry
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REGISTERED OFFICER
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
14th Floor, Wing On House,
71 Des Voeux Road Central,

Hong Kong

WEB-SITE
www.proactive.com.hk

www.irasia.com/listco/hk/proactive

E-MAIL

info@proactive.com.hk

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Butterfield Corporate Services Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Corporate Information

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Central Registration Hong Kong Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

SPONSOR

Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance Ltd

AUDITORS
Arthur Andersen & Co

Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS
Conyers Dill & Pearman

Wong Shum & Co. Solicitors & Notaries

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Dao Heng Bank Limited

Hong Kong Chinese Bank

Pembroke Citibank, N.A.
Bermuda
MM EE EEROBFERDE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BREEABHEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSANG Chi Hin, Vincent, aged 43, is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of Proactive. He is
the co-founder of the Group and is responsible for corporate strategic planning and management. Mr. Tsang
holds a bachelor degree in economics and a higher certificate in electronic engineering with over 17 years
of experience in telecommunications and electronic industries. Mr. Tsang started his marketing careers in
1984 and was a marketing engineer in National Semiconductor Hong Kong Limited in 1985 responsible for
regional marketing. He then joined Hongkong Telecom as a consultant in 1987 marketing data communication

services and his last position in Hongkong Telecom was Account Director.

Mr. LAM Kim Chau, Derek, aged 40, is the co-founder and the Chief Technology Officer of Proactive. He is
responsible for regional business development and new technologies procurement. Mr. Lam is a chartered
electrical engineer in the United Kingdom, member of the Hong Kong Computer Society, British Computer
Society and Institution of Electrical Engineers. He has over 18 years of experience in the telecommunications
industry and holds a masters degree in telecommunications from the University of Essex. He has worked for
Cathay Pacific Airways as a communications engineer and Hongkong Telecom as a consultant providing

advisory services in data and communication networking for enterprises in Hong Kong.

Mr. LAU Kai Shun, Barry, aged 41, is the Chief Operating Officer of Proactive. He joined Proactive in 1995
and is responsible for day-to-day general management and business development of the Group in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lau holds a masters degree in business administration and a higher diploma in production and
industrial engineering. He has over 11 years of experience in the telecommunications and information
technology industries. Prior to joining Proactive, Mr. Lau worked as a corporate sales account manager in

Hongkong Telecom for over five years.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management ZEZER S RE

Mr. WONG Wai-Ho, aged 52, joined Proactive in August 1999 and is the Finance Director of Proactive, in
charge of the Group’s financial affairs. He is also Director of Anco Computer (H.K.) Company Limited and
Prospects Investment Development (HK) Limited. Mr. Wong graduated from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a bachelor degree majoring in accounting in 1971. Mr. Wong has over 28 years experience, of
which 14 years in direct investment. He had been appointed by Jardine Fleming as Associate Director,
Kleinwort Benson as Director and Advent International Corp. as Managing Director. Prior to that, he has
worked with the Hong Kong Trade Development Council (HKTDC) responsible for the promotion of Hong
Kong’s external trade for 13 years. Mr. Wong currently is a director of The Chinese History & Culture
Educational Foundation and a member of the Board of Trustees, Chung Chi College, The Chinese University

of Hong Kong.

Mr. PONG Kam Wah, aged 41, is the Chief Software Architect of Proactive. He joined Proactive in June
2000 and is responsible for product research and development of the Group. Mr. Pong holds a masters
degree in electronic engineering and is a member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers as well as a
Chartered Professional Engineer of the Institution of Engineers, Australia. He has 19 years of experience in
the telecommunications industry, including 8 years of experience in telecommunications software
development. Mr. Pong has worked in a number of large telecommunications companies, including Hongkong

Telecom, Fujitsu, Alcatel and Hutchison Telecom.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHOW Dah Jen, David, aged 41, was appointed non-executive Director in August, 2000. Mr. Chow is
currently the Managing Director of Pacific Venture Group, one of the largest venture capital firms in
Taiwan. He is a member of the American Bar Association and has extensive experience in legal practices
and venture capital financing in both Taiwan and the US. He has worked with Morgan, Lewis & Bockius and
McCutchen, Doyle, Brown & Enersen, and was appointed by Microtek International, Inc., a listed technology
company in Taiwan, as general counsel. Mr. Chow graduated from School of Law, Soochow University,

Taiwan and received his Masters degree in Law at Harvard Law School.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management ZEERSREBAEFHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG Zhenhan, aged 69, was appointed independent non-executive Director in February 2000. Mr.
Yang is a machine-building specialist with over 30 years of experience. For more than 10 years he had been
a director and chief engineer of a large machine-building factory, employing over 10,000 staff. In addition,
Mr. Yang was Director of Foreign Economic Relations and Trade Commission of Shanghai Municipality. In
October 1985, Mr. Yang established the South East Economic Information Centre in Hong Kong, and was

appointed as Vice Chairman. Mr. Yang is currently the Chairman of a consultancy company in Hong Kong.

Ms. WU Suk Ching, Annie, aged 53, was appointed independent non-executive Director in February 2000.
Ms. Wu is an independent non-executive director of ING Beijing Investment Company Limited, a Hong
Kong publicly listed company. She is also a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee,
a member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council China Advisory Subcommittee, Vice Chairman of
the All China Federation of Industry & Commerce, Vice Chairman of the Chinese Foreign Enterprises
Association and Chairman of the Women Entrepreneurs Association in China. Ms. Wu holds a bachelor

degree in business administration from Armstrong University.

Mr. Robert Brainin ISSENMAN, aged 52, was appointed independent non-executive Director in February
2000. Mr. Issenman is currently the President and Chief Executive Officer of Leader Auto Resources LAR
Inc, the Executive Vice President of the Invaplan group of companies, and a member of the law firm Davies
Ward Phillips & Vineberg. He has held executive positions on a number of professional organisations or
bodies including International Young Lawyers Association and was co-founder and National President of the
Hong Kong-Canada Business Association and sits on several public and private board of directors. Mr.

Issenman is a barrister and solicitor and holds a bachelor degree in Arts and a bachelor degree in civil laws.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAI Kar Leung, Vincent, aged 33, is the General Manager of Proactive. He joined the Group in June
2000 and is responsible for the general management in Hong Kong and provides support to the regional
operations. Mr. Lai graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1991 and started his career in the
telecommunications and networking industries by joining Hongkong Telecom. He moved to Shanghai in
1995 working for Ascom Timeplex in charge of Central China sales. Prior to joining Proactive, Mr. Lai held

regional and global sales management positions with Telstra Corporation and UUNET respectively.

Mr. CHAN Kin Chung, Donny, aged 36, is the Operation Director of Proactive. He joined the Group in
December 2000 and is mainly responsible for operation and sales. He holds a degree in engineering from
Loughborough University of Technology and has over 11 years of experience of in the telecommunications
industry and information technology. Prior to joining Proactive, Mr. Chan held the Greater China regional
sales position with Periphonics, Nortel Networks Company from 1997 to 2000. Mr. Chan has extensive

experience in customer services and sales through his past experience from Hongkong Telecom.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF ASSOCIATE

Mr. KWAN Che Hang, Jason, aged 34, is the Managing Director of Proactive Cyberspace (Shanghai) Ltd.
(“PCS”), the joint venture of JOS China and Proactive Group. He is one of the founder of PCS and is
responsible for PCS’s operation in China. Mr. Kwan graduated in University of British Columbia, Canada,
with a bachelor degree in finance. He has over 8 years’ experience of marketing telecom equipment in the
enterprise market. Before establishing PCS in 2000, he has worked with Jardine Matheson Group for over 9
years, responsible for regional and China business development and received a number of performance
awards. His last position with Jardine Group was General Manager of JOS Shanghai. Mr. Kwan is also the

Chief Representative of Proactive Shanghai Representative Office.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EESHREE

The Directors have the pleasure of presenting the annual report together with the audited financial statements
of Proactive Technology Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) for
the year ended 31st December, 2001.

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 25th February, 2000 as an exempted company under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). On 3rd May, 2000, the Company became the holding
company of the other companies comprising the Group pursuant to a group reorganisation scheme which
included exchanges of shares in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on The Growth Enterprise
Market (“the GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”). The shares of the
Company were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 18th May, 2000.

Details of the group reorganisation scheme and the basis of presentation of the financial statements are set

out in Note 30 to the accompanying financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in investment
holding, design, development and sale of value-added telecommunications products and computer telephony

products.
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Report of the Directors EZHREE

An analysis of Group’s turnover by product range and by geographical area, together with their respective

(loss) profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31st December, 2001 is as follows:

AEEREBE —TE S+ A=+t "B LFERERERRCES Mz EXBLE S8 HRREMWG (BER)

w A D AT
a. By product range
REMEHR

(Loss) profit attributable

Turnover to shareholders

EEH RFE AL (B8) EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERL TERL
Telecommunications EHNEMR 31,633 (63)
Computer telephony ERER 17,722 503
Unallocated ADE = (23,984)
49,355 (23,544)

b. By geographical area *
B E D 35

(Loss) profit attributable

Turnover to shareholders

EEH RFE AL (B8) &F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERL TERL
Hong Kong A 40,582 (20,241)
Taiwan =Y 88 (1,719)
Australia M 3,771 (775)
Singapore CipIIE 3,029 (920)
Mainland China HE 1,885 111
49,355 (23,544)

Turnover by geographical location is determined on the basis of the location of relevant activities.

* mipE o MEEXBEERBEABESAEMEMES
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Report of the Directors EEH & E

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December, 2001, the five largest customers accounted for approximately 35% of the
Group’s total turnover and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 67% of the
Group’s total purchases. The largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 10% of the Group’s

total turnover while the largest supplier accounted for approximately 33% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers and suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December, 2001 are set out in the consolidated

income statement on page 50 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend and recommend that the accumulated loss

of approximately HK$23,429,000 as at 31st December, 2001 be carried forward.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of movements in share capital and share options of the Company are set out in Notes 22 and 23,

respectively, to the accompanying financial statements.

FTEEFRHEERD
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RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED LOSS

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 24 to the
accompanying financial statements. Movements in (accumulated loss) retained profit of the Group during

the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 50 of this annual report.

The Company had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31st December 2001 (2000 —

HK$3,644,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s

listed shares up to the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associate are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to the accompanying

financial statements.

3]
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MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in machinery and equipment during the year are set out in Note 10 to the accompanying

financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31st December, 2001 are set out in Note 18 to the accompanying

financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 28 to the accompanying financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year (2000 — Nil).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The related party transactions disclosed in Note 3 to the accompanying financial statements constituted
connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the

Stock Exchange (“the GEM Listing Rules”).
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors
Mr. Tsang Chi Hin
Mr. Lam Kim Chau
Mr. Lau Kai Shun, Barry
Mr. Wong Wai Ho
Mr. Pong Kam Wah

Non-executive director

Mr. Chow Dah-jen, David

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Yang Zhenhan
Ms. Wu Suk Ching, Annie

Mr. Robert Brainin Issenman
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In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Yang Zhenhan, Ms. Wu Suk Ching, Annie and Mr.

Robert Brainin Issenman will retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each of the executive directors of the Company has entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing from 25th February, 2000 in the cases of Mr. Tsang Chi Hin, Mr. Lam
Kim Chau, Mr. Lau Kai Shun, Barry, and Mr. Wong Wai Ho, and for an initial term of two years commencing
from 1st August, 2000 in the case of Mr. Pong Kam Wah. The service contracts shall continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving the other not less than three months’ notice after the expiration of the

said initial fixed term.

Each of the non-executive directors of the Company has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial term of two years commencing from 28th February, 2000 in the cases of Mr. Yang Zhenhan,
Ms. Wu Suk Ching, Annie and Mr. Robert Brainin Issenman, and 1st August, 2000 in the case of Mr. Chow
Dah-jen, David. The service contracts shall continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving the

other not less than three months’ notice after the expiration of the said initial fixed term.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within

one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31st December, 2001, the interests of the directors and their respective associates in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the register maintained under Section 29 of the
Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (“SDI Ordinance”) of the Company or which required, pursuant
to Rules 5.40 to 5.59 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were

as follows:

ESEROVES

R-FE-—F+-_F=+—8B  BAQXFAREIF (BRERER) GO ((REESGO]) F209G6FEZELMA
Rk BEERRERAZBEALIRARAREBERABMER 2 ARBEEEBRERXSMER A A A
¥REFEHF ETARA(TAIZER ETRA) F5.402 5596 EHAME AR LBz EEMT :

Number of Shares of the Company

BR

Percentage

Personal Family ~ Corporate Other of shares

interests Interests interest interest Total outstanding

Name of directors ESpE /48 BARE ZE#E DR HiEs BE BILNE
Mr. Tsang Chi Hin gEREE 52,415,466 - - — 52,415,466 22.593%
Mr. Lam Kim Chau MR EE 52,415,466 = = — 52,415,466 22.593%
Mr. Lau Kai Shun, Barry — ZIRi{5 % & 37,382,664 = = — 37,382,664 16.113%
Mr. Wong Wai Ho BEFAE 10,210,688 = = — 10,210,688 4.401%
Mr. Pong Kam Wah RBELE 5,000,000 = = - 5,000,000 2.155%

Other than disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2001, neither the directors nor their associates, had any
interests in any securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SDI
Ordinance, and neither the directors nor any of their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right

to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURE

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 3rd May, 2000 (“Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to
which it may grant options to employees (including executive directors) of the Group to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, options were granted on 30th June, 2000 to the
executive directors and other employees of the Group to subscribe for an aggregate of 19,420,000 shares in
the Company at a price of $1.30 per share, during the exercise period from 1st July, 2003 to 30th June,
2010. As a result of the cessation of employment of certain grantees, 5,010,000 share options granted to
them on 30th June, 2000 has lapsed since date of grant. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in

Note 23 to the accompanying financial statements.

As at 31st December, 2001, the share options granted to and held by the directors of the Company are as

follows:

ESBRERODAGESHER
AABR—_FTZTFRAA=ZRA—ARRESE ([REEFE]D Bt ARFAAIBRBRERTAEEE
B(BRUTES URBARFAKRD - RERDBENE  AEENTEERAEENEBEECR -_FZEZ

FRAZTHEETRRE HN_ZZ=F+A-HE_Z-—ZFA=ZTHOHRREHE - LERK1.30%
TTE HREE19,420,0000 ) - BERTHRE AR ETRABRBENEET - XEEES LA REE5,010,0008
BHERBEEREMEEHERAN - BEERRETENFBEHRNBEN OKRE M523 -
HE-FTE-F+_A=1+—"R0 FRARAEEHAATBERONVEF :
Number of share options
Subscription at beginning and
Date of grant price per share end of the year
Name BESpE/ 48 RTAH BRITEER EORFHAABREYE
Mr. Tsang Chi Hin TEREL 30th June, 2000 $1.308 T 1,000,000
ZETTERA=TH
Mr. Lam Kim Chau MRIK % £ 30th June, 2000 $1.308 T 1,000,000
ZETTERA=TH
Mr. Lau Kai Shun, Barry AMEELE 30th June, 2000 $1.30%8 T 1,000,000
ZETTERA=TH
Mr. Wong Wai Ho BERFRLE 30th June, 2000 $1.308 T 1,000,000
ZETTERA=TH
Mr. Pong Kam Wah BERELE 30th June, 2000 $1.30% 1T 5,800,000
ZETTERA=TH
9,800,000
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding
companies a party to any arrangements to enable any of the Company’s directors or members of its
management to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate and none of the directors, their spouse or their
children under the age 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the company, or had exercised any

such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 3 to the accompanying financial statements, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any of the Company’s directors or members of its management had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31st December, 2001, according to the register of substantial shareholders required to be maintained
under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance, the Company has been notified of the following interests, being

10% or more of the issued capital of the Company:

BREXHREEN E_FTT—FEH ARAXEAEMNBRARMERSENLZHN—STRSEETEBABA
RABREMEMARNEENROIESTMERS  NESFAEAREIRBIRBT +NARNFRFEEMNE
MARBARANEBESFARAFREITEZFEN -

ESHAENER
BRREMMREMEIREEI)  ARRAREEMHBERRNRNFERELFEEZANEMEGH @ WEITZEMSAR 43

REEERLAHEZTEEARGENEEAN -

FERR
REZE-—F+_A=+—B BLELXMEEREHESZOEZ  RERERESGINSI6EREATHESE
MEEERREMOER  ARFNEANEATHELARFT0%EA LD ETRANEZEHAT

Number of issued shares Percentage holding
Name REEE/ &8 R 13 & B FREALDE
Mr. Tsang Chi Hin TEREL 52,415,466 22.593%
Mr. Lam Kim Chau MBI & 52,415,466 22.593%
Mr. Lau Kai Shun, Barry AMEELE 37,382,664 16.113%

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no notice of any interests to be recorded under Section 16(1) of

the SDI Ordinance as at 31st December, 2001.
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SPONSOR’S INTEREST

As at 31st December, 2001, neither Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance Ltd. (“Deloitte”) nor its directors
or employees or associates, had any beneficial interest in the Company’s share capital. Pursuant to the
agreement dated 29th May, 2001 entered into between the Company and Deloitte, Deloitte has received
and will receive a fee for acting as the Company’s retained sponsor for the period from 29th May, 2001 to

31st December, 2002.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the

business of the Company was entered into or existed during the year.

BOARD PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES
The Company has complied with the board practice and procedures as set out in rules 5.28 to 5.39 of the

GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st December, 2001.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the income statements and balance sheets of the Group are set out on pages 89 to 90 of this

annual report.

REAER
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on 3rd May, 2000 and has formulated its written terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 5.23 to 5.27 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit
committee are to review the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-yearly reports and quarterly

reports and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board.

The members of the audit committee, all being independent non-executive directors, during the financial

year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Yang Zhenhan
Ms. Wu Suk Ching, Annie

BEMNEES

RABERBAZER EWRAUNES 235 27FMBZRE R_FTETFRA=ARUERZBEGLFEHX
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The proceeds from the issue of new shares for the listing on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, after deduction

of related expenses, amounted to approximately $52,129,000 and have been applied as follows:

P8 RIE AR
AARETRBEBEERMEERE  HBBEBRIZ  MEXEFELOR52,129,000087T - RAFE RS
ERBEFHHWT
Amount utilised up to
31st December, 2001
BE-2Z-%
Original plan* tZB=+-HL
RA G ERANYE
$'000 $'000
TET TET
Establishment and expansion RIRRRAEEZER
of the Group’s Hong Kong REMNHER
and overseas offices 11,000 8,071
Marketing activities of the Group's FEBEERZTSHEE -
products including organising BREABHTER
workshops and participating SMESRES
| 46 in trade exhibitions 15,000 1,580
Establishment and expansion of BRI B S R 5 T B R D
a research centre in Australia 7,000 160
Expansion of the research centre MEEBHES L
in Hong Kong 10,000 4,896
Investments REEE - 770
Additional working capital of —REEESR
the Group 9,000 19,306
52,000 34,783

Annual Report 2001

Amounts extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 10th May, 2000 issued in connection with the listing of

the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
* FHBFRARARBLZHBEBRNEEEBHARSALTMEL  BRNA—ZZEZTFAATENBBRERP MM -
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In view of the market slowdown during the year, the Directors have carefully evaluated the situation and
reallocated the funding as additional working capital for financing the Group’s ongoing operations. In
addition, it is the present intention of the Directors that they will place the unused proceeds on short-term

deposits with financial institutions in Hong Kong.

AUDITORS
The accompanying financial statements were audited by Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co as the auditors for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,
TSANG CHI HIN

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th March, 2002.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
REEHEE

ANDERSEN

Arthur Andersen & Co
21st Floor, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark
15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of

PROACTIVE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 50 to 88 which have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate

accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to

report our opinion to you.

to be continued
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BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the company and of the group, consistently applied and

adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe

that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of
the group as at 31st December, 2001 and of the loss and cash flows of the group for the year then ended,
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN & CO

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18th March, 2002.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2001

Annual Report 2001

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AEBEIIR)

BE-ST-FT A=+ BLER

2001 2000
—EZ-F —TTTRE
Note $’000 $'000
i3 T T
Turnover BERE 3&4 49,355 63,816
Cost of sales HERKA (19,473) (27,164)
Gross profit EM 29,882 36,652
Other revenue Hi ez = 103
Distribution and selling expenses SHEREETH (1,535) (679)
General and administrative expenses —RRTHEIE (51,283) (42,765)
Loss from operations TEER (22,936) (6,689)
Interest income F B WA 4 782 1,684
Interest expense FlEX (399) (1,055)
Provision for impairment in value of BERARERNE
investment in an associate £ (1,300) -
Share of loss of an associate AEHENRER (54) (26)
Loss before taxation and minority interests B % 51 & &t D R REZAEE 5 (23,907) (6,086)
Taxation 1A 7 (122) 161
Loss before minority interests A et BUR R g A 1R (24,029) (5,925)
Minority interests SERREREGER 485 =
Loss attributable to shareholders REELER 8 (23,544) (5,925)
Retained profit, beginning of year ZREMN - F1) 115 6,040
(Accumulated loss) Retained profit, (RFEHE)ZBEF -
end of year FR 24 (23,429) 115
Loss per share — Basic BREE - AKX 9 10.1 centsfl 2.8 centsfl




BALANCE SHEET

pra =
EEEBER
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2001 R-ZZ—%+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ¥ 7R)
Consolidated Company
SR N
2001 2000 2001 2000
“8%-F -TTTF -BT-F -TITF
Note $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000
i &E Fr Tr Fr Tr
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBERE
Machinery and equipment EEEE 10 10,813 13,236 = =
Development expenditures REER Al 809 1,376 = =
Investment in subsidiaries MEBRARE 12 = = 20,373 43,519
Investment in an associate BEARRE 13 1,101 3,275 = =
Long-term investment REKREER 14 770 = - =
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 13,493 17,887 20,373 43,519
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 15 4,649 8,359 = =
Trade receivables FE AR K 16 4,014 17,372 = =
Prepayments, deposits and BAHE RER
other current assets HttmaEE 17 1,882 2,902 = 226
Pledged bank deposits BERBIER 5,892 9,217 = =
Cash and other bank deposits ReREMBITFER 17,591 18,905 10,147 12,889 51
Total current assets MYEELE 34,028 56,755 10,147 13,115
CURRENT LIABILITIES ok A=A
Short-term bank borrowings RHRTER 18 (1,177) (9,039) = -
Trade payables BT8R 3R 19 (3,420) (2,098) = =
Accruals and other payables BEREAREMENK (8,618) (5,207) (637) (655)
Receipts in advance BYHE (1,325) (1,650) = =
Finance lease obligations MEHEETEERMNK
— current portion - AHHBH 20 (239) (209) = =
Taxation payable [ARgiika - (179) - -
Total current liabilities mBEELEE (14,779) (18,382) (637) (655)
Net current assets MBEEFE 19,249 38,373 9,510 12,460
Total assets less current AERTBAE
liabilities 32,742 56,260 29,883 55,979
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Balance Sheet

Consolidated Company
sy AF
2001 2000 2001 2000
“EE-f _TTTHE ZEE-F _TTTE
Note $/000 $'000 $/000 $'000
Lk T T T T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Finance lease obligations MEHEETEERNK
— non-current portion — EARHIHH 20 (43) (282) = -
Net assets FEE 32,699 55,978 29,883 55,979
Represented by: RE
SHARE CAPITAL (& 22 23,200 23,200 23,200 23,200
RESERVES i 24 9,086 32,778 6,683 32,779
Shareholders’ equity P R 2 32,286 55,978 29,883 55,979
MINORITY INTERESTS LHRRER 413 - - -
32,699 55,978 29,883 55,979

Approved by the Board of Directors on 18th March, 2002:
EZEeN TR _F=ZA+/\B&E:

TSANG CHI HIN

B & &R

Chairman

E

WONG WAI HO
BEER
Director

BE




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2001 HZE-TT—F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ¥ 7R)
2001 2000
—E2-F —TTITF
Note $'000 $'000
Bt 3% Tr T
NET CASH INFLOW (OUTFLOW) REEZHEEZRS
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RACRE) B8 25.a 7,717 (15,591)
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND REBRKRK
SERVICING OF FINANCE MERA
Interest received BIF B 782 1,684
Interest paid B F & (399) (1,055)
383 629
TAXATION HE
Hong Kong profits tax paid BHEEFEH = (1,278)
Overseas tax paid BEINGE (271) (16)
(271) (1,294)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of machinery and REETEE 53
equipment (5,048) (14,421)
Proceeds from disposal of HEETEEMBHE
machinery and equipment 79 12
Decrease (Increase) in REERRMD (5m)
development expenditures 567 (1,376)
Increase in investment in REE R AR E LM
an associate — (3,300
Proceeds from disposal of & D RIS R
an associate 25 -
Increase in long-term investment REBREEN (770) =
Translation adjustments ERHE (122) 15
(5,269) (19,070)
Net cash inflow (outflow) BEMEEZRERA (Ri)
before financing HE 2,560 (35,326)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement HLEaBEREXR

2001 2000
—EZ-F —TTTE
Note $'000 $'000
i T T
FINANCING MEE 25.b
Issuance of shares Bk MH = 64,032
Share issuance expenses EIRHER - (11,903)
Repayment of short-term bank loans EBERITEX (1,479) (1,321)
Decrease in amount due to a director D ER— B EZFHE - (29)
Repayment of capital element of EEREHEETEE
finance lease obligations RN 1 (209) (92)
Capital injected by a minority —HER R D BRRA
shareholder of a subsidiary BARA 872 =
(816) 50,687
Increase in cash and cash ReRReEEH2EM
equivalents 1,744 15,361
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FORERREEEN
beginning of year 20,562 5,201
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ERRERREEEN
end of year 25.¢ 22,306 20,562




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
CRABZBEFSTER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2001

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AEBEIIR)

BE_ZT—F+-_A=+—HILFE

2001 2000
—ER-F e .2
$/000 $'000
T T

Net loss not recognised in the AEFARART

consolidated income statement HRERFE

- Translation adjustments - EXRE (148) (2)
Loss attributable to shareholders BREMLER (23,544) (5,925)
Total recognised losses BERAEE (23,692) (5,927)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S M A

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

1. ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS
Proactive Technology Holdings Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 25th
February, 2000 as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended). Its shares have been listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 18th May, 2000.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in investment
holding, design, development and sale of value-added telecommunications products and computer
telephony products. Inherent in the Group’s business are various risks and uncertainties, including
changes in technology, the ability to raise additional capital and financing when necessary, and the

fact that the Group has reported losses for the past two years.

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Rules Governing the listing of securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Principal accounting policies are summarised below:

(BREZBHERA  MELTAANBTREM)

1. RAIEHAREZHREE
BEAMEEZERER AR ([A2AD R _ZFZEF_A_THARBERE- NN\ F285 (EEE)
EFAREZMRLIREREER AR - ARARNER _ZEZZTFRAT/N\BEREBBHAERSME
PR (T8 32AT]) 8 24k (TR 4R ) £77 -

RAAFWEZEBRBREZR AKBETEXBIRG HABELHEEHEEAERLREREZER -
AEBEXBEEERRETHBER  ETEERMEEL  EAELERSEESHABENRED - AR
AEBEBEMEAFEESERNEE -

2. FESFTHE

AEHCKRBRBESHNAERTAEERNSIER LR  FERXRSFTRAREERRKIE
BZBRBEREREBMARXSMARARAERESLETRA(TETRADHORERFHE - AEE RS
MEESFFEREBMLAT :




Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥ 3R & Kt 5

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

a.

Adoption of new/revised Statements of Standard Accounting Practice
Effective 1st January, 2001, the following Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants have been adopted:

SSAP 9 (revised): Events after the balance sheet date

SSAP 10 (revised): Accounting for investments in associates

SSAP 14 (revised): Leases

SSAP 26: Segment reporting

SSAP 28: Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
SSAP 29: Intangible assets

SSAP 30: Business combinations

SSAP 31: Impairment of assets

SSAP 32: Consolidated financial statements and accounting for

investments in subsidiaries

In order to comply with SSAP 9 (revised) “Events after the balance sheet date”, the Company
has recognised dividend income and the related receivable of approximately $3,988,000 from
a subsidiary in respect of the year ended 31st December, 2000 when it was declared in March
2001 (ie. during the year ended 31st December, 2001), instead of in the financial statements
for the year ended 31st December, 2000. This new accounting policy has been adopted
retrospectively, with the opening balance of accumulated deficit adjusted (see Note 24). In
addition, the Group has disclosed segment information in Note 26 to the financial statements.
Except for these changes, the adoption of the aforementioned new/revised SSAP’s had no

material effect on amounts reported in the prior years.

2. FTESHBEE®

a.

ST EVAHES L TS LT
MoFE—F—A—HE AATARATATHEERHBAEAMOGHEHRA -

B EBERFESR (BT A) : EERBERBKRER

B EBEAFI0H (BRI A) ¢ s N ERE S ER

B EBERE 1458 (BFT A - 24

B EBEAF 265 ¢ DEmE

Bt EBEAF 285 BB HERERAFEE

B EBEAF295 ¢ BVEAE

B EBEAF30 A B

B EBEAFIIN AERE

Bt EBEAFI2 HEVBRRLEBRENBAR S EE

RTETEAEBEUNFIOR (BAIRN) [EEBARARERINEL  AQFAHEE —HHE A
AR -—ZEZE—F=-RA(ABE _TZT S+ A=+ HLFER EMRBE_ZTTZEF+
B=+—RALFEREZRER  BRAREWARBEEKIKRE mAFEEE_ZTZTTF+
“TRA=tT AN BRRTERAR - LS BRERNEE R EUET S H - BAERF R
BRZFNHRE(RMFE24) - W BAAEE Z2HHEMEEBNIREME26 © FRA BRI -
EHRM LR 2H MR ASHEBSEINLAREHUNEABNBREFTEATE -

9]

panwi sbuipjoy ABojouyoa] aAioBOId

=)

ki

T

ad

¥ XM



Annual Report 2001

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥ R & Kt 5

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

c. Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”). The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
recorded from or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal. Significant intra-group
transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

d. Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is a company in which the Company controls, which is normally evidenced
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of that company
so as to benefit from its activities. In the Company’s financial statements, investment in
subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision for any impairment in value, while income from
subsidiaries is recorded to the extent of dividends received and receivable.

e. Goodwill
Goodwill represents the difference between the fair value of the consideration given and the
Group’s share of the aggregate fair values of the identifiable net assets of subsidiaries acquired.
Goodwill is capitalised in the balance sheet and is amortised to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful economic life. This represents a change from prior
years where goodwill was eliminated immediately against reserves. The Group has adopted
the transitional provision allowed in SSAP 30, and goodwill arising from acquisitions before
1st January, 2001 will continue to be held in reserves.

2. FESTHER(E

b. IR TH 4 B
RIRERNELKAIERREEE -

c. meEE
HAKRARBARAMEMBARNKE (MBIAKE]) - FEARBIEENMNE AR - H
(EANRBILEERRTAGRARERAN MAEARRABRZLEFERNIREBELGEREH -

d. B 1 X |
MEBARDARBAAENNAE - —KRERT ZHREZES BBZUBREEBRNUR
BREFSH 2N - RARBZHMBHREAN - KRB R R NERE TR K A E R E [ K AR EE
AR MRBHEQRZWARRE WA E & ERAR SR -

e. BE

HEAUBIZRAEAEEMRBZAIREEFEQRFEEZER - LERRBZASHE
EFEATEERBRBERAMEENBEBESNRIARE REBZABERINEESR
BERPEAE  URBEGHAUEALEFR  NEREMBAREEER - ~AEERESS
EBEAUFIORAFNRBERER  E_TF—F - A BAZAAUBHELEZABHELS
BESIERERLZAEMIIK -




Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥ 3R & Kt 5

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{ic

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group holds 20% or more of
its issued voting share capital as a long-term investment and can exercise significant influence
over its management. In the consolidated financial statements, investment in associate is
stated at the Group’s share of the fair value of the separable net assets of the associates at the
time of acquisition, adjusted for the Group’s share of undistributed post-acquisition profits/
losses and reserves of the associates, distributions received from the associates and other
necessary alterations in the Group’s proportionate interest in the associates arising from changes
in the equity of the associates that have not been included in the income statement. In the
Company’s financial statements, investment in associates is stated at cost less provision for an
impairment in value, while income from associates is recorded to the extent of dividends

received and receivable.

Turnover and revenue recognition

Turnover represents (i) the net invoiced value for the supply, development and integration of
telecommunication and computer telephony systems, after allowances for returns and discounts;
(ii) rental income from leasing of telecommunication and computer telephony equipment; and

(iii) fees for consulting and maintenance services.

Revenue is recognised when the outcome of a transaction can be measured reliably and when
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group. Revenue from the supply, development and integration of telecommunication and
computer telephony systems is recognised when the merchandise is delivered and the related
development and integration services are completed. Rental income from leasing of
telecommunication and computer telephony equipment is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the respective periods of the leases. Consulting and maintenance service fees are
recognised when the services are rendered. Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis on the principal outstanding and at the rate applicable.

2. FTESHBEE®

f.

Bt 0 F)

gL RNBNERMBARIN  ARBEUARBERERAFHH20%I N L2 HTEAREERA
YHAHEERBTREREAFENZIAR - AFENGEAEMBHRERY AEBERBLERRZKET
BRAGERKRBERMEZBE AR IRAEEFEZIAFEE  MEAKEMGEZQFU
BRASE &N BERER BERBEARKBROOEREMEREE R AN EREEM
EEREREGaRTRBROBBE AR LI ERANERNEZAR - EARAMBRERA - KNS
ARBEWRENIEEAAERERKAOREEBAK - MARBHEQFZWARIRE WIS REYK
SRR -

EEER W SRR
EEHAROEE RARELREREMEFREARGTENBRBRERFTNEFGRZ FRFE
HEBMEAREMRBIESWA - R>GINEHRBARBEERSE ZRE WA -

WHEIIRRGZEREAASHEMER I FERAZEBN SRR AKEMERFER - #
B RAEREXREMEFREARAZEENZETRCRINREEREREXRE TRE T
NHER - HEESHEFREARBACGHEHSBARSEELENRMREERELETRER - FHAR
HERBBEBRARREEZXETAER - MESWATDRBEREERS RE R F X206 H L O &
ERER ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥ R & Kt 5

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

8.

Turnover and revenue recognition (continued)
Advance payments received from customers prior to delivery of merchandise and completion
of the related development and integration services or rendering of other services are recorded

as receipts in advance.

Taxation

Individual companies within the Group provide for profits tax on the basis of their profits for
financial reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expense items which are not assessable
or deductible for profits tax purposes.

Deferred taxation is provided under the liability method, at the current tax rate, in respect of
significant timing differences between profit as computed for taxation purposes and profit as
stated in the financial statements, except when it is considered that no liability will arise in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are not recognised unless the related benefits are
expected to crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that takes a substantial period of time to bring to its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset based on the cost of the specific borrowings. All
other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Employee retirement benefits
Costs of employee retirement benefits are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

2. FTESHBEE®

g.

EEERWEER (A
FE7 an A K B B R B I SR BKBR 7% 52 K AT Sk H (b BR 7% SE K AT B B R B MR B 2 TR A BR B TR UL
I °

A
AEBAERNABZANSHEE  ASEMBRRZENSEE  YHMNSHM S EARRZ
WA ARz A BB ETHERAH -

BRERBADRBFABTEARERVENEMERRABBINMEZLERSZBME - ERSTE
REUBEABERERZBBENTEEEAN - RIFEFANZBINRAUELERESAER - TAIRE
MEEER TR -

f& &R A

EWiE  ERALEFN - EHFTE2 - RERIHEGA TREEREMTEREREEZEEM
BEREEZEBERAEN  BBEZHEERAZ D  MBEEMEERAERSZEBEKRAHE
SHRZ-HER -

TRKRER
TERBAXRAERBZBAXABLEHHZ —BER -

8
|




Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥ 3R & Kt 5

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

k.

Machinery and equipment and depreciation

Machinery and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Major expenditures on modifications and betterments of machinery
and equipment which will result in future economic benefits are capitalised, while expenditures
on maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred. Depreciation is provided on a
straight-line basis to write off the cost less estimated residual value of each asset over its
estimated useful life. The annual rates of depreciation are as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 30%
Motor vehicles 30%
Equipment on lease to customers 30%
Equipment for development 30%

Gains and losses on disposal of machinery and equipment are recognised in the income

statement based on the net disposal proceeds less the carrying amount of the assets.

Machinery and equipment held under finance leases are recorded and depreciated on the
same basis as described above.

FTESHBEE®
k.

EEEERITE

BEEEENEKABRRFITEI R A EEBREEN G NENNEZETEEZTERE
AR MEEREERBEEEEFMSIBZAXAREERE/SXBAR MEDNREHREEZ
B RFEY  YERINEMNBGEERNEGREMBEEEZIKRAGTE - FHEZRNT :

R RBAERE 20%
) B 30%
BHiR 30%
HFEFPZXE 30%
7 B 5% 1 30%

HEBREEEZABNEHEMSREFRREZEECRAEEREENBERER -

MUY BROFEZEEEEA L 2 EETRRITE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥ R & Kt 5

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Research and development expenditures

Research expenditures are written off as incurred. Development expenditures are charged
against income in the period incurred except for those incurred for specific projects which are
deferred where recoverability can be foreseen with reasonable assurance and which comply
with the following criteria: (i) the costs attributable to the product or process can be separately
identified and measured reliably; (ii) the technical feasibility of the product or process can be
demonstrated; (iii) it is intended to produce and market, or use, the product or process; (iv)
the ability to produce or use the product or process can be demonstrated; (v) the existence of
a market for the product or process or, if it is to be used internally rather than sold, its
usefulness can be demonstrated; and (v) adequate resources exist, or their availability can be
demonstrated, to complete the project and market or use the product or process. Capitalised
development expenditures are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period in which the
related product or process is expected to be sold or utilised, starting from the time when the

product or process is available for use.

Long-term investment
Long-term investment is stated at cost less provision for any impairment in value. Income

from long-term investment is accounted for to the extent of dividends received or receivable.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using
the first-in, first-out method of costing and includes costs of purchase and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less further costs expected
to be incurred to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving or

defective items where appropriate.

2. FTESHBE S

MERMAXER

MREBEREEBRERME BREAXREEAREERATNE  HEASEEEMEL B A ER
FEAHKE - AFETHNERZERBEARIN - VEFHERIALEETFERERTE  MZEH
FAEETFZBEXAAEERAIEMAERE  (VERERREETHF KM AT ¢ (i)
FRACERBREENREH (RERZEMIEELF  (VERAITEFBRERIEETIF2THNK
(WEBERIEETFRAHABEAMIEE TEM LX) EHCX 2B E UEWMWABRHE
BB TIERHEREN AR L EEAERERERREETF - CRAEAZERE
PERBHEERREFBMERBER 2 HMAERREH -

REMREHEER
EHERERE DEAAEREMNKAREEREAR MEEBEHKERE ZBARRE KRS
K e Wk SRR iR o

rH
BEMRRARTEIEEME T 2 BESEAE - RARAREHRA N EHE - & 0ERE
PSR (5 77 B30 B T B 0 B KR AR T A 2 B AR AR o W BRA Y LA IE M T B AR A A 3
EREHENEHEEZE - SRAREENE - ME  BEREL EREEAEERTE
i -




Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥ 3R & Kt 5

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

n.

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Impairment of assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of one of these assets may not be recoverable. Whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss representing
the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, is recognised in the
income statement. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and
value in use. The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an
arm’s length transaction less the costs of the disposal, while value in use is the present value

of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from
its disposal at the end of its useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss of an asset recognised in prior years is recorded when there is

an indication that the impairment loss recognised for the asset no longer exists or has decreased.
The reversal is recorded in the income statement.

2. FTESHBEE®

Mo

8 (&)

FRELE  HEEmEEREISABRERABR —BAXH FEMBAEZEAERFEZE
AHRBERMEFEERORER SMARNEREEME 2 - AFEAZ R FEEINNH
PEZEMNFEMNRE  SEZPERLEHRMMERIFEX RPN -

BEERE

MERLBEAKNBET  BENKESBAEBLIREE  AQRFASRIEERERBR - E&
ENREASRBEARTKONSEBER KRECEETRENSBERE 2 2B UAREARERG S
BAR - ARESREEEFEEREABETZIRGE - FEBRELERZBATHESR
ERNERZSRERABLEEXRANEZR - MERBEEREREEEREERERERABMRTHE
REEZEEMELENARKRRSRENRRHE -

MERXEENEERERATBEFERRIE @ HBEZEAKREERERRAINBRRS TN
EE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥ R & Kt 5

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

p-

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result
of a past event and it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed regularly and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to

settle the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent
asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Subsequent events

Post-year-end events that provide additional information about the company’s position at the
balance sheet date or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate,
(adjusting events), are reflected in the financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

Leases

Finance leases represent those leases under which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets are transferred to the Group. Machinery and equipment held
under finance leases are initially recorded at the present value of the minimum payments at
the inception of the leases, with equivalent liabilities categorised as appropriate under current
or non-current liabilities. Interest expense, which represents the difference between the
minimum payments at the inception of the finance leases and the corresponding fair value of
the assets acquired, is allocated to accounting periods over the period of the relevant leases
to produce a constant rate of charge on the outstanding balances.

2. FTESHBEE®

@0

BERIRSEE
EREEEMHELARBEAER(THRI/ AN ENER) - MEEZERA L ENRARE EH
BERBNENERZL MARAUSEHAZBEENSE  MEeREER BESFSEHR
BRARE  URBRRENKEMLT HMEeHESHHENFERERN  BENSHRAERERRY
FERXWERE -

ZREAETEEVNBERRAER - RIFZHESRKEMNENERRLOAEERE  HREE
—RETURE -HREBEETERNVBHRRER  HEOETREESEENSNSRE -

BIREEHE
FHEBRBAMEAGEANMBARARRBINEN BB TIRATELEELERSTRENE M
EEVYBHRERARR - T ES R ELEABINFLEARERNEHSEMEPRE -

Z8
REHEROERDEEFARIAMBDRAREDREREAEEZRY - RUBROFEZ
BEEENRROLERE  BHRENKBIREVDILHEAR  MERBBNERBERIN/RD
LERBERE - FMEXHEIT LV BROZHZENKBEBARBAZEEZAFEEZEE
REBZOFHBASAFHSA IR UEREEEHR ZMBIHEXBUAEE -




Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥ 3R & Kt 5

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

r.

Leases (continued)
Operating leases represent those leases under which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets remain with the lessors. Rental payments under operating

leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
relevant leases.

Foreign currency translation

Individual companies within the Group maintain their books and records in the primary
currencies of their respective operations (“functional currencies”). In the accounts of the
individual companies, transactions in other currencies during the year are translated into the
respective functional currencies at the applicable rates of exchange prevailing at the time of
the transactions; monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated
into the respective functional currencies at the applicable rates of exchange in effect at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the income statements of the
individual companies.

The Group prepares consolidated financial statements in Hong Kong dollars. For the purpose
of consolidation, income and expense items of subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average applicable
exchange rates during the year; assets and liabilities of subsidiaries with functional currencies
other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the applicable rates of
exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from such translations
are dealt with as movements of cumulative translation adjustments.

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

2. FTESHBEE®

[

2H (8
REBMOEEEREGRZRAR &@ﬁ%Kt%%%Eﬁﬂ“j%ﬁZﬂm°W§ﬂ%2ﬂ%&
HEEABUEREFTABRER °
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REBEXERAANEEREERZEIEZER AR HEER]) - ZFERAEMEBETZX
HNERGHZEAEZTRESZANEERE  UHEMEEFEZEREENABREERE
REARAMZEREXTRESEENEEE  NEMERFEZFEREERABERRKREX
mE - ERIERSFAZERRAZERK

o

AEBUBETHRESHUVBRER - REHKRER  MEBARMABABTUINZTHEEEEFEZ
BENBEREERERGRAPZERETRELE L WEBARMERETAIINZEER
B EZWARBRRABRZFEFOETRESE L - WEREMEEZERLZRIER R
BEBABEEHEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 7 % & M 5%

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

FHEALXRES

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence.

E-NARNEERHEEESNS -7 REETHBERKLERREBERH R -—HTEEAZENE - A
WEBEBEEAL - WEMPZTHRERNA—BFHXRA-—EATE  ATHRESBFHEEAL -

The Group had the following significant transactions with a related party:
AEBEAEHEEALTHRZEARZHBH AN T :

Name of related party/Nature of transaction 2001 2000
EBEALER/XHME —2T-F —TTTE
$7000 $'000
T T
Proactive Cyberspace Company Limited* REIEHHEBEREERAR
- Sales made by the Group - AKEHE 161 =
* Proactive Cyberspace Company Limited is a 33'/,% owned associate of the Group.
& BEAEHEBHBRERIARAEEEAR3S [ %ERZBERA -

TURNOVER AND REVENUE
EEER KGR
Turnover and revenue consisted of:

EEBREmZMTET :

2001 2000
23—  -FIIF

$'000 $'000

Fr Tr

Telecommunications Bl 31,633 43,122
Computer telephony ENER 17,722 20,694
Total turnover HEBT 49,355 63,816
Interest income from bank deposits RITEHME WA 782 1,684
Other revenue H i = 103
Total revenue Foll € 50,137 65,603




Notes to the Financial Statements & # & Hff &
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION AND MINORITY INTERESTS
MRBAIRRFTDBRRESAE B
Loss before taxation and minority interests was determined after charging and crediting the following items:
BB RARFLDBBRREENER DMK R ATIIER &I
2001 2000
—g¥-5  -$TIE
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
After charging - Sk :
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) EIRA (BRESEMS) 26,060 21,193
Less: Amount included in research and wBRERRER
development expenditures HEERZHE (3,904) (3,725)
22,156 17,468
Research and development expenditures MERREER 4,243 4,234
Less: Amount capitalised (Note 11) A EXERSR (M) (457) (1,376)
3,786 2,858
Write-off of development expenditures FEERME 1,024 =
Cost of inventories BERA 18,203 26,531
Operating lease rentals of premises HEBFHZ 4,620 3,434
Interest expense MEHX
- bank borrowings wholly repayable -LERNEEYZ
within five years RITER 347 1,018
- finance lease -RERE 52 37
Provision for and write-off of bad REREE
and doubtful receivables 1,292 3,299
Provision for and write-off of obsolete RERBHEEEEE
and slow-moving inventories 2,370 653 61
Depreciation of machinery and equipment ErEENEER
— owned assets -BHBZEE 4,439 2,520
— assets held under a finance lease -REHERBLAE 250 146
Net loss on disposal of machinery HEETEE
and equipment ZE#& 638 242
Net exchange loss EXBREEE 114 326
Auditors’ remuneration 2 Tk 560 688
After crediting - git A
Rental income A ON
~ leasing of telecommunication and -HEEAEMR
computer telephony equipment ERER 5,698 3,280
- leasing of premises -HENE - 103
Interest income RKE AT HHERA
— bank deposits -BAER 782 1,660
- a related company —-—REBERT = 24
Gain on disposal of an associate HERE R AR FE 24 -
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ESReEEBAEME

6. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS

Annual Report 2001

a.

Details of emoluments paid/payable to directors of the Company are:

SNTFTARBDEETZMEFEAT :

2001 2000

—EZ-F —TTTF

$000 $000

T T

Fees for executive directors HTEEHE = 2,451

Fees for non-executive directors FRTEZENS 210 221
Other emoluments for executive directors $117% EEtE ¢

- Salaries and allowances —EAGEREMER 4,360 2,162

- Pension scheme contributions - RIS EE K 60 -

4,630 4,834

No directors waived any emoluments during the year. No incentive payment for joining the
Group or compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to any director for the year.
AREMEFEEAN  UMEEEREEANE - FA > AEEAEENREN TFERNESERN
BAEEZ BB S HBERHE -

The number of directors whose emolument falls within the following bands is as follows:

HMENFATHEAZEEAZDOT ¢

2001 2000
—2E-F TSR
Executive directors HiTEE

- Nil to $1,000,000 —%E%1,000,0007T 4 5
- $1,000,001 to $1,500,000 —1,000,0017T £ 1,500,0007T 1 -

Non-executive directors FHTES
- Nil to $1,000,000 —%E%1,000,0007T 4 5
9 10

During the year ended 31st December, 2001, the five executive directors received individual
emoluments of approximately $1,268,000 (2000 — $960,000), $816,000 (2000 — $1,000,000),
$814,000 (2000 — $994,000), $770,000 (2000 — $993,000) and $752,000 (2000 — $666,000).
The four non-executive directors received individual fees of approximately $70,000 (2000 —
$59,000), $70,000 (2000 — $59,000), $70,000 (2000 — $59,000) and Nil (2000 — Nil).

RBEZZZT—F+_A=+—"BILFEHH  AMNHNTESS B UREEN £ 41,268,000 (=
TZEZF :960,0007T) © 816,000 (ZZEZZ4F : 1,000,0007T) ' 814,0007C (ZEZEZT 4F :
994,0007T) ' 770,0007C (ZZEZEZ 4 : 993,00070) & 752,000 (ZTZEZEF : 666,0007T) 1
fIERTESH B WEEE 470,000t (ZZFZTZF : 59,0007T) * 70,000 (ZEZT F -
59,0007C) ' 70,0007c (ZZFZTZ 4 : 59,0000) RE(ZZTZTTF : &) o
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6.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
EErcsREEBRAEME (B

b. Details of emoluments paid/payable to the five highest paid individuals (including directors
and other employees) are:

rEBLIfURSH AR (BREEREMER) MM FBOT

2001 2000

—g%-5 -3TTE

$’000 $000

Tr T

Directors’ fees EENE = 2,451
Salaries and allowances EXAGE R E MR 4,370 2,162
Pension scheme contributions FEMz= 60 =
4,430 4,613

Three (2000 — Five) of the highest paid individuals were directors of the Company, whose
emoluments have been included in Note 6.a above.

“NERHFAB(CZTZEZF: AR)RUTESE REZHEEH KM F6.a°

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and other employees) as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

RAFEERN ¥ EBAOAUESHFAL(BEEEREMES) XM S AR SIEMARNEERSL R
MAREEESER R S BEREE -

The number of the five highest paid individuals (including directors and other employees)
falls within the following bands:

I ERHFAL(BEEEREMEE) WM N F AT HE A S :

2001 2000

—g%-§  -FIIF

- Nil to $1,000,000 —#E%1,000,0007T 4 5
- $1,000,001 to $1,500,000 —1,000,0017C%1,500,0007T 1 =
5 5
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TAXATION
BiE
Taxation consisted of:
HIEERBE :
2001 2000
—2E-F e
$’000 $000
T T
Current taxation BT
- Hong Kong profits tax - BETEH = -
- Overseas income tax - BRI 108 108
Share of associate’s taxation SEHENRRE 14 -
122 108
Deferred taxation ERETIR - (269)
122 (161)

The Company is not subject to tax in Bermuda on its profit or capital gains until March 2016. No
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had no assessable profit arising in or derived
from Hong Kong. Overseas income tax has been provided by subsidiaries, branches or representative
offices based on their estimated taxable profits at the rates of taxation applicable in the respective
jurisdictions in which they operate.

RABZBANEEARGEAIER BN ERENRBEE_ZT—RF=AR/L - Iﬁ%$‘§@ﬁi*ﬁ‘ﬁ”‘ 17
BEEEELIMBZEFERTEN  MARELBERBNSHETREE - BINREANBRR 22
ARBIMEERBEFTERAVENLRZERLECEERRHINZERRETETHRE -

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

REREALEE

During the year ended 31st December, 2001, the consolidated loss attributable to shareholders
included a loss of approximately $26,096,000 (2000 — $4,942,000) dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.
HE_ZZ—F+_A=1+—BILFE GKEeRFEEEEECEEBARRARAZHBRRERE ZEIE
#926,096,0007C (—“ZFZEZF : 4,942,0007T) °

LOSS PER SHARE

BRERE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the consolidated loss attributable to shareholders
of approximately $23,544,000 (2000 — $5,925,000) and on the weighted average number of
232,000,000 shares (2000 — 214,505,000 shares) in issue during the year.

K %K}EﬂaJELM%%Hx%JZEfEEﬂ%?r% » #)7%23,544,000 T (— EFZF : 5,925,0000T) © REAL
AT Bt 2 tn#EFHEE %232,000,0008 (ZZEZZ 4 : 214,505,000%) 5t & -

Diluted loss per share is not presented because the effect is anti-dilutive.

HREAFEANETBERBEEESEZE RUBE2SREEER -
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10.

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT

BEEE

Movements in machinery and equipment (consolidated) were:
BEEBEEZS KA O :

2001 2000
Z2%-% b & 2 3
Furniture,
fixtures Equipment
and on Equipment
office  Computer Motor lease to for
equipment equipment  vehicles customers development Total Total
BAR BF¥EF

RAZRE BERE EH kB FRRE @t @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
T T T T T T T

Cost B

Beginning of year 4 5,088 4,806 1,398 3,830 2,717 17,839 4,927
Additions RE 281 1,026 = 2,562 1,179 5,048 15,004

Disposals HE /M (477) (303) (113) - (61) (954) (521)
Transferred to inventories REZFE - (130) - (1,678) (775)  (2,583)  (1,559)
Translation differences ERZET 9 3 (13) = = (1) (12)
End of year R 4,901 5,402 1,272 4,714 3,060 19349 17,839

Accumulated depreciation ZiHE

Beginning of year 1) 826 2,348 559 634 236 4,603 2,522

Provision for the year FEERE 969 1,098 329 1,270 1,023 4,689 2,666

Disposals HE /M (77) (92) (51) - (17) (237) (267)
Transferred to inventories REZRE - (24) - (321) (173) (518) (315)
Translation differences ELER 1 1 (3) - - (1) 3)
End of year R 1,719 3,331 834 1,583 1,069 8,536 4,603

Net book value REFE

End of year 4 3,182 2,071 438 3,131 1,991 10,813 13,236

Beginning of year R 4,262 2,458 839 3,196 2,481 13,236 2,405

Certain motor vehicles with a net book value of approximately $438,000 (2000 — $688,000) were

held under a finance lease.
AEBRMBRZAOFENE TEWH ZREFEL R438,000C (ZZEZTZ F : 688,0007T) °

n
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11.

12.

DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES
HEEH

Movements of development expenditures (consolidated) were:

REEREE Fa) AT

2001 2000
—2T-F —TTTE
$7000 $'000
T T
Beginning of year £4) 1,376 =
Additions FRE 457 1,376
Written-off ik (1,024) -
End of year FX 809 1,376
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
MELRRE
In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in subsidiaries consisted of:
EARABZEEABRA WEBAAKREESRE
2001 2000
—ET-F —TTTE
$7000 $'000
T T
Unlisted shares, at cost ELEmBRH - BRRAE 8,791 8,791
Due from subsidiaries W B 2 RSB 45,048 39,062
53,839 47,853
Less: Provision for impairment in value BEEE (33,466) (4,334)
20,373 43,519

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and not repayable until the

subsidiaries are financially capable to do so.

RABRBTERMBEBRARNEF R EHENERZAER

JE UL B B A B 2 BRIR I R R NEHFE

M A RER °

The underlying value of the investment in subsidiaries is, in the opinion of the Company’s Directors,
not less than its carrying value as at 31st December, 2001.

RAAFEZERRRENMBARAZEREES NI RE_ZT—F+_A=+—HZKHE-"




Notes to the Financial Statements

01 % WS M

12.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

MERIRRE (&)

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2001 are:

RZBEZE-—F+-_A=+—"HHNMBEIFTEHRDT :

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and
fullypaid

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

Name operations share capital to the Group  Principal activities
REBE RN
Ex A/ EEnE BERTRARRAE REWLH TEEH
CentreWorld Holding Limited ~ British Virgin Islands US$1,029 100%  Investment holding
RERAES 1,029%X 7T BEER
Interworth, Inc British Virgin Islands Us$100 100%  Investment holding
RERAEE 100% 7T REZR
Proactive e-Commerce Australia A$10 100% Provision of
(Australia) Pty. Limited BN 1027 telecommunications and
computer telephony
solutions
RUEALERES
BANE
Proactive Technology (Asia) Singapore $G$100,000 100%  Provision of
Pte Ltd b 100,000% 7T telecommunications and
computer telephony
solutions
RUEALERES
VIS
Proactive Technology Hong Kong $1,000,000 100%  Provision of
Limited BB 1,000,000/ 7T telecommunications and
EAMBERAA computer telephony
solutions
RUEALERES
BANE
Proactive Technology Taiwan NT$10,000,000 60% Provision
(Taiwan) Limited = # A %1,000,000 of telecommunications

EENBRBNARAF

The shares of CentreWorld Holding Limited are held directly by the Company. The shares of other

subsidiaries are held indirectly.

B CentreWorld Holding Limited W FIERMN R AR R EEMFEE - HMHBRARNRKRMNARAE R A

BRE -

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during the year ended 31st

December, 2001.

products and provision of

tele-commerce services
RESAREABE
BRA R

RBEE—ZTE—F+ A=+ "HLFEANLMNBRARAUERTENEEER -

13
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13.

14.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
B ATRE
Investment in an associate (consolidated) consisted of:

BERRIKRE (BR) B8

2001 2000

2E-F e

$ $'000

Tr T

Unlisted shares, at cost ELEmBG - BRRAE 3,300 3,550
Accumulated share of losses R 3 /NG E (94) (26)
3,206 3,524

Less: Provision for impairment in value BoOREER (1,300) (249)
1,906 3,275

Amount due to an associate FE B & D R 08 (805) -
1,101 3,275

The underlying value of the investment in an associate is, in the opinion of the Company’s Directors,

not less than its carrying value as at 31st December, 2001.

RAAFEZERRRENBERAZEREES NI RE_ZE—F+_A=+—HZKHE-"

Details of the associate as at 31st December, 2001 are:

REZBE-—F+-_A=+—RH XRAFWBELEIAFINNAT :

Percentage of
equity interest

Place of Issued and attributable
incorporation/ fully paid to the Group
Name operations share capital  (held indirectly)  Principal activities
REBE RN
ey HEMmY/ E5nE BERTRARRE (Mk) RELH FEEH
Proactive Cyberspace Hong Kong $6,900,000 33'/%  Provision of
Company Limited & 6,900,000/ 7T telecommunications and
REIEHHBE computer telephony
BRARAA solutions
RUEAREREH
BANE
LONG-TERM INVESTMENT
REIREERR
Long-term investment (consolidated) consisted of:
RHREEE Ra) B
2001 2000
—EZT-F “ETEF
$'000 $'000
T T
Unlisted shares, at cost EEMRG - BRAE 1 -
Advance REBEERARAER 769 =
770 -
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14.

15.

16.

LONG-TERM INVESTMENT (continued)

RHAKREER (&)

In May 2001, the Group acquired a 10% equity interest in Optech Telecom Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, which is principally engaged in the development and trading of
telecommunications products. In addition, the Group has advanced to Optech Telecom Limited an
amount of $769,000, which is unsecured and non-interest bearing during the loan period from the
date of grant to 30th November, 2002 and has no pre-determined repayment terms.
E_ZTZ—FHA FAEEBABEETNAERAAI10%EZR - W —MEBKILOHDGE - HEEEK
RERLMHEEMER - B AEELETEEESAERAFMGEHRA769,000T » ZEREARTHE
—EF_F+ - AZTRAZERIMLEER  TFHMNERTREEERY -

The Company’s Directors are of the opinion that the underlying value of the long-term investment is
not less than its carrying value as at 31st December, 2001.

AAFREZERRENREFEZEREETN I RE_SE—F T+ _A=1t—HZKHEE

INVENTORIES
7
Inventories (consolidated) consisted of:

TE (6) 81 :

2001 2000
—ER-F —TTTE
$7000 $'000
Tr T
Telecommunication and computer telephony BEARERESR
hardware and software products & 7,005 9,291
Less: Provision for obsolete and W RE R
slow-moving inventories FEEE (2,356) (932)
4,649 8,359

As at 31st December, 2001, inventories of approximately $2,897,000 (2000 — $8,359,000) were

stated at net realisable value.
RZZEZT—F+ZA=+—H " 42,897,000t FE AN ZH FEAR(ZZTZTZF : 8,359,0007T) °

TRADE RECEIVABLES
FE W BR X
Trade receivables (consolidated) consisted of:

YRR (&) B4 ¢

2001 2000

—ZEZ-F —TTITF

$7000 $'000

T T

Accounts receivable & U5 B 3K 3,825 12,159
Retentions receivable W R B R 2,239 8,361
6,064 20,520
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables W RBREE (2,050) (3,148)
4,014 17,372

N

panwi sbuipjoy ABojouyoa] aAioBOId

=)

-



Notes to the Financial Statements & # # & Hff &
16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
FE Ui BR R (8)
The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods ranging from 30 days to 60 days. Aging
analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
AEBE-—RETEFI0Z0REEH - BRERKRESITOT :
2001 2000
—22-F —TTTE
$'000 $'000
T T
0 to 1 month 0Z1{8A 2,974 10,155
1 to 2 months 1228 A 534 1,552
2 to 3 months 2238 A 306 1,227
3 to 6 months 3Z618 A 826 5,953
6 to 9 months 6E9f@A 1,212 792
9 to 12 months 9Z1218 A 79 550
12 to 15 months 122158 A 133 291
6,064 20,520
17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
EARE -REREMERBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other current assets consisted of:
BNRE HeRkEURBEESE :
Consolidated Company
e ENA
2001 2000 2001 2000
ZEZ2-f -“ZTTF C"EFT-F _“TITTH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Tax recoverable & e B2 3% 718 734 - =
B 16 Prepayments BB 163 400 = =
Rental and utility deposits HERRAZERES 914 1,249 = =
Others Eit 87 519 - 226
1,882 2,902 - 226
18. SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS
52 HR IR 1T B K
Short-term bank borrowings (consolidated) consisted of:
BHERTER (BR) 81
2001 2000
—22-F —TTTE
$7000 $'000
o T T
N Bank overdrafts BITEX 1,177 2,182
[ Trust receipts bank loans EXhBERTER _ 5,378
"‘; Short-term bank loan RBHETEXR = 1,479
1,177 9,039
Refer to Note 29 for details of the Group’s banking facilities.
REBRTREFIBEFS LM E29
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19. TRADE PAYABLES
FE 15 BR 7K
Aging analysis of trade payables (consolidated) is as follows:
e R BRER DT (BR &) AT -
2001 2000
—2T-F —TTTE
$'000 $'000
Tr T
0 to 1 month 0E1{8A 899 299
1 to 2 months 12218 A 433 776
2 to 3 months 223{8 A 295 921
3 to 6 months 3%6f@A 1,581 39
6 to 12 months 6E128 A 86 1
Over 12 months 12EANRE 126 62
3,420 2,098
20. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS
MEHMEREEERMNHK
Details of finance lease obligations (consolidated), net of future finance charges, are:
MEBEBEETEERN K (EA)NFBONT(TEERARPENUBER) -
2001 2000
—ET-F —TTTE
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Repayable within a period T 5] B 0B 79 A< Y R 2R
- not exceeding one year -—%R 239 209
~ more than one year but not -—F#R
exceeding two years WER 43 282 11
282 491
Less: Amounts repayable within one year H:EARERDAGZ
included under current liabilities —FRNENEE (239) (209)
43 282
21. DEFERRED TAXATION
I 3E 75 18
Movements of deferred taxation (consolidated) were:
RIERIAEE) (BRE) AT ¢
2001 2000
—EZT-F —TTTE
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Beginning of year £4) - 269
Write-back of net timing differences FEMERRERAER - (269)
End of year EES - -
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21.

22.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
i FE B IE (50

Deferred tax assets have not been provided in respect of the following items:

R-FT—F+_RF=1+—B  AEEREFRBENEEHRBEENT :

2001 2000
22-F —TTTE
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Accelerated depreciation allowances EEEEZMRITE 1,388 1,633
Tax losses G CEES (4,821) (1,429)
Others H A (705) (628)
(4,138) (424)
SHARE CAPITAL
IR 7
2001
Z2%-% b & 2 3
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
QR 4= AE QR 4= AE
'000 $'000 '000 $'000
T Tr T Tr
AUTHORISED EE
(ordinary shares of $0.10 each) (BlREE0.10 2Bk )
Beginning of year £ 1,000,000 100,000 = =
Upon incorporation of the Company RUREERA - - 1,100 110
Increase in authorised share capital EEERA - - 998,900 99,890
End of year FRALR 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
ISSUED AND FULLY PAID BRTRAR
(ordinary shares of $0.10 each) (BlREE0.10 2Bk )
Beginning of year £ 232,000 23,200 = =
Issue of shares BORA = = 1,029 103
Issue of shares arising from the REAMET2RMH - - 1,029 103
Reorganisation
Issue of shares through a placing BRRNARERNES - - 46,400 4,640
Capitalisation of share premium BEAREERMETZ
B EERFAR - - 183,542 18,354
End of year FRAR 232,000 23,200 232,000 23,200
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23.

SHARE OPTIONS

st El

The Company has a share option scheme, pursuant to which it may grant options to employees
(including executive directors) of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a
maximum of 10% of the nominal value of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time,
excluding for this purpose shares issued on the exercise of options. The subscription price will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
nominal value of the ordinary shares; (ii) the average of the closing price of the shares quoted on the
GEM on the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the closing price of
the shares quoted on the GEM on the date of grant, which must be a business day.

RABRMNT —HRBREE - RIFERFE - ARRESFUUABTRERB AR A HEEMAHE
AAWNEES  BRERATESE RBLAFRE RBABRRSAEARAZ2MBEHETRANI0% - BB
ETERBREREXNNERER  BEAAARAEZTENERTE  EELERTFERUATERSS
WEEE: WVRAEE: (WZEBLFEARERTEHIAELEXBNTHRTE mEEKTER
N RPTHBMRMEERE  RINWAEEFERBEER TEHR(LARLEEB)NKTE  mMAERBK
MERNBRZIERRAEERE -

Movements of employee share options during the year ended 31st December, 2001 were:

HEFTE-—F+_A=+—"HALFEA EERRENEHOT :

Number of shares

AREHE

Granted Lapsed Exercised

Subscription Beginning during during during
Date of grant Exercise period price per share of year the year the year the year  End of year

FES
R EYAGR EFEPRT REIHAN  EEPE FEAGE
RTEH TRER TRER &8 &8 &8 TE¥E &8
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
i i i i i
30th June, 2000 Tst July 2003 to

30th June, 2010 $1.307C 17,470 - (3,060) - 14,410

“ZZRERXAZTHE ZEE=FrA-AZ
“E2-ZE A=1H
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24.

RESERVES
&
Movements in reserves were:

HEEBBERNOT

2001 2000
“33-% “23%E
Cumulative
Share Capital ~ Contributed translation (Accumulated
premium reserve* surplus  adjustments deficit) Total Total
BARE  ZREY
RHEE  EXGEE (b) #E (REFB) @it @it
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 §'000
T T T T T T T
Consolidated Ge
Beginning of year ENEH 29,135 3,530 = (2) 115 32,778 9,767
Premium on issue of ordinary shares  Z{TRHE 2 BB - - - - - - 59,392
Share issuance expenses EIRHER - - - - - - (11,903 )
Capitalisation of share premium BihEEREER - - - - - - (18,354
Loss attributable to shareholders — REEHEE - - - - (23544)  (23,544) (5,925)
Effect of the Reorganisation REAMELNTE
(Note 30) (F£30) - - - - - - (197)
Translation adjustments EidE - - - (148) - (148) )
End of year ERER 29,135 3,530 - (150)  (23429) 9,086 32,778
Company LS|
Beginning of year &R
~ As previously - ERE
reported £ 29,135 = 8,586 = (954) 36,767 =
- Prior year adjustment -HHFERERE
(Note 2.a) (Bt2.a) - - - - (3,988) (3,988) -
- As restated -REREE 29,135 = 8,586 = (4,942) 32,779 =
Premium on issue of EIRHE
ordinary shares Lif - - - - - - 59,392
Share issuance expenses EIRHKER - - - - - - (11,903 )
Capitalisation of share premium BihEEREER - - - - - - (18,354 )
Loss attributable to shareholders — REEHEE - - - - (26,096)  (26,09) (4942)
Effect of the Reorganisation REAMELNTE
(Note 30) (F£30) - - - - - = 8,586
End of year ERiH 29,135 = 8,586 = (31,038) 6,683 32,779
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24.

RESERVES (continued)
EREREE))

Note —

B 5

Capital reserve (consolidated) represents the negative goodwill arising from the acquisition of Proactive
Technology Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary, by CentreWorld Holding Limited, another wholly-owned
subsidiary, in January, 1998. The Group has adopted the transitional provisions allowed in SSAP 30, such

that the negative goodwill arising from acquisitions before Tst January, 2001 will continue to be held in
reserves.

FUERFEBE )RR —NAANFE—A » BEHEARAH 2 &M B QA CentreWorld Holding Limited?E 1 &
BEARANS —R2EMNBARBAMMEARARBAEEANEHEEE - AEERMN G EKLEBIFE305
AFNBERER E_FTZ—F - A - BAZAAKBNEENEEF BN SEBIFRARLZEEMRT
[/

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), contributed surplus is distributable to
shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.
REBEERE-NN\-FRAER(BEE)  BABBKUHEIIK THRR  BEORAAFTES X MK
EERBABBKELDIKE  ODARA TR EFLINRETEINEBER  R(HEEENAE
REEFESRAMINEGEREREECHRTRARRAGEERPFNAARE  IARRTAFEHEANE
i XAEDIK e

The Company had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31st December, 2001
(2000 — $3,644,000).
REZFZE—FF+-A=+—H ARFAUEBEAIHEE TRRNOEE(ZFTTZTF : 3,644,0007T) °

A
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FEBRERERME

a.

Reconciliation of loss before taxation and minority interests to

operating activities:

BRRAEBRELCLEFHEECRESRAORE) FR 2 E

net cash inflow (outflow) from

2001 2000
—gg-%  -222F
$7000 $'000
Fr T

Loss before taxation and minority interests B Al &5 18 (23,907) (6,086)
Interest income FEKA (782) (1,684)
Interest expense FEZH 399 1,055
Share of loss of an associate PEBELAER 54 26
Depreciation of machinery and equipment EEEEME 4,689 2,666
Net loss on disposal of machinery HE/HMEEEEEZ

and equipment EREE 638 242
Gain on disposal of an associate HEMERARNFR (29 =
Provision for impairment in value BERARRENE

of investment in an associate i 1,300 =
Decrease (Increase) in inventories FERDY (Bm) 5,775 (3,148)
Decrease (Increase) in trade receivables FE U R FOR 2 (3 0) 13,358 (12,645)
Decrease (Increase) in prepayments, BAHE - R REM

deposits and other current assets mBEERS (EM) 1,004 (1,399)
Decrease in due from related companies EY—HAERAFERD - 1,000
Increase in amount due to an associate FE < B & 3 ) 3E 805 =
Increase (Decrease) in trade payables EREFEM CRd) 1,322 (34)
Increase in accruals and other payables FIRE R R E RN FRE N 3,411 4,182
(Decrease) Increase in receipts in advance  FBUFIB (D) &1 (325) 234
Net cash inflow (outflow) from BEEHEEZRERA

operating activities (i) 38 7,717 (15,591)




Notes to the Financial Statements & # & Hff &
2055 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FEREeRBERMWETE (B
b. Analysis of changes in financing is as follows:
MEZH 2 HFWT :
Share capital
and share Short-term  Finance lease Minority
premium Bank loans obligations interests
RAER 'Y HEHEEER LERR
BiiafE RITEE BEEMAR i
$'000 000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr
As at 1st January, i
2000 —R—R&&% 1 2,800 = =
Issue of shares through BRREET
a placing i 64,032 = = =
Shares issuance expenses BTRHER (11,903) S S S
Issue of shares and share REBEEKET
exchange upon the PN RG]
Reorganisation (Note 30) (M &£ 30) 206 = = =
Effect of the Reorganisation REAMELNYE
(Note 30) (M & 30) m = = =
Repayment of short-term bank loans (3% & #8171 & - (1,321) = =
New finance lease MERENE - = 583 =
Repayment of capital element EEBEMREET
of finance lease obligations BREENFALHH - - (92) =
As at 31st December, R-ZEEEE+-f
2000 =t-H&H 52,335 1,479 491 -
Repayment of short-term bank loan (3 & #5171 E - (1,479) - -
Repayment of capital element EEFHEREET 83
of finance lease obligations BREERNFALHH - - (209) -
Capital injected by a minority ~ HEBRF L HER
shareholder of a subsidiary RAEX - - = 872
Share of loss for the year PBAEEER - - - (485)
Translation differences ERZESR - - - 26
As at 31st December, “ET-F+-f
2001 :‘I’ HEE&% 52,335 - 282 413
C. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents is:
RekReFEM 2
2001 2000
—22-F —TTTE
$’000 $'000
T Fr
Cash and bank deposits Be RBITER 17,591 18,905
Pledged bank deposits HHRITER 5,892 9,217
Bank overdrafts BITEX (1,177) (2,182)
Trust receipts bank loans FRWERTER - (5,378)
22,306 20,562
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26.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

THEEHR

The primary segment is defined by major product and operational unit, while the secondary segment
is defined by geographical location of customers:

BEBMNDEBIZEREEGEMMBEE  MEMAEHNDRREPHIE D M mEE

a. Primary segment

ElEVl

The Group is organised into two product and operational units — telecommunications products
and computer telephony. The telecommunications products unit derives revenue from supply,
development and integration of telecommunication products. The computer telephony unit derives
revenue from supply, development and integration of computer telephony systems and earns fees
for consulting and maintenance services. Analysis by business segment is as follows:
AEEDREBEEAEAAEMEFMNBELIEER REBEMMARK - & ﬂéun& fi& & 55 F9 18
TEEMREEBEULREBMNE HEREAEAMEEMREMEFE R GRIEE WA -
FRRHEBARGEREMBRMABRAREERBE WA - RIBEBSD iﬁﬂ’l TR

2001 2000
Z2Z-% —TTTE
$/000 $'000
T T
Turnover EXE
- Telecommunications -Bi 31,633 43,122
- Computer telephony -BREHF 17,722 20,694
49,355 63,816
Loss attributable to shareholders BRREMER
- Telecommunications -Ei (63) 11,028
- Computer telephony -BHEF 503 3,023
Segment profit (loss) AENE (BR) 440 14,051
Other revenue H A 0 2% = 103
Unallocated expenses AABEAK (23,376) (20,843)
Loss from operations BEER (22,936) (6,689)
Interest income R ON 782 1,684
Interest expense FeZH (399) (1,055)
Provision for impairment in value BEARRE (1,300 -
of investment in an associate EERE
Share of loss of an associate ElEEaRAEE (54) (26)
Loss before taxation BRHAER (23,907) (6,086)
Taxation B (122) 161
Loss after taxation BRHEER (24,029) (5,925)
Minority Interest LERRENESR 485 =
(23,544) (5,925)
Depreciation TEER
- Telecommunications -Bi 2,046 830
- Computer telephony -BENE: 748 366
— Unallocated - KABRTEER 1,895 1,470
4,689 2,666
Capital expenditures BRER
- Telecommunications -Bi 2,846 5,606
- Computer telephony -BREHF 694 1,987
— Unallocated - KPRERER 1,508 7,411
5,048 15,004
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26.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
2EER (&)
a. Primary segment (continued)
HEER (&)
2001 2000
—EZ-F —TTTE
$7000 $'000
T T
Assets BE
- Telecommunications —-Bi 10,179 23,940
- Computer telephony -BKES 5,107 12,625
— Unallocated - KABREE 32,235 38,077
47,521 74,642
Liabilities B
- Telecommunications -Bi 3,074 1,100
- Computer telephony -BREHF 2,340 2,477
— Unallocated -KAEREE 9,408 15,087
14,822 18,664
b. Secondary segment
BOX FE 3 R
Analysis by geographical location is as follows:
RRHMESHOSTAT :
2001 2000
—ZZ-F —TTTE
$7000 $'000
T T
Turnover E
- Hong Kong -&E 40,582 52,140
- Taiwan -8E 88 7,175
- Australia — BN 3,771 2,694
- Singapore —F M 3,029 1,807
- Mainland China — 1,885 =
49,355 63,816
Loss (Profit) attributable to shareholders WREEMEEE (&F) 85
- Hong Kong -& 20,241 3,108
- Taiwan -RE 1,719 1,451
- Australia — BN 775 (177)
- Singapore — ¥ 920 654
- Mainland China — (111) 889
23,544 5,925
Assets BE
- Hong Kong -& 45,622 71,501
- Taiwan -RE 1,440 231
- Australia — BN 296 1,189
- Singapore — # I 28 1,608
- Mainland China — 135 13
47,521 74,642
Liabilities B
- Hong Kong -& 14,474 18,550
- Taiwan -8E 265 =
- Australia — BN 34 114
- Singapore — # I 5 =
- Mainland China — 44 _
14,822 18,664
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27.
AEERIREE

RN EE

are analysed as follows:

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a. Operating lease commitments

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of premises under various non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The commitments payable under

these agreements

AEBERBEZHEARERBMELAARELEBTOGRFTETEXEBEOAE REFHEARR
HMEENENAEZERERITAT ¢

Consolidated Company
I\V\é $£\a
2001 2000 2001 2000
ZEZ-f “ZTTFE C"ET-F _“TITTH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Amounts payable within RTAEHR 2
a period of &8
— within one year -—FR 2,365 3,806 = =
~ between one and two years -—FREMER 957 3,322 = =
- between two and five years ~—Z—FRERFA - 308 = =
3,322 7,436 - -
The commitments payable within the next twelve months are analysed as follows:
MEPRART —EARENZAERINMOT :
Consolidated Company
I\V\é $£\a
2001 2000 2001 2000
ZE2Z2-f -“ZTTF C"ET-F _“TITTH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Leases expiring RTHI R E R 2 84
- not exceeding one year -—%R 333 304 - =
— within two years to five years ——FHZERFR 2,032 3,502 = =
2,365 3,806 - -
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27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

28.

AERIAREE (B

b. Contingent liabilities
FREE
Consolidated Company
k) PN
2001 2000 2001 2000
ZEZ-f “ZTTFE C"EFT-F _“TITTH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Guarantee provided to banks KARGRARA 2K B
for banking facilities granted RAIZHRTRAM
to subsidiaries el 2 AR ER = = 12,500 21,800
Shipping guarantees ARBRZREER - 1,484 - -
- 1,484 12,500 21,800

PENSION SCHEMES

B K7 R 3 2

The Group maintains various pension schemes for its employees. The pension schemes for non-Hong
Kong employees are defined contribution schemes, with contributions to the schemes determined by
reference to employees’ salaries and length of service ranging from 8% to 20% for employees and
8% to 25.5% for the employer. The Group’s Hong Kong employees are covered by the mandatory
provident fund, which is managed by an independent trustee. The Group and its Hong Kong employees
each make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ income with the maximum
contribution by each of the Group and the employees limited to $1,000 per month.
AEBRERERITAMNERABENGTE - EBINEEMRNERFEME  AEEEALRERSR
BABKBRBERELTHERK - BEARFT L L8%E20%FHEHR - MAKEBEREEFE48%
25 5% FHER - AKRELAEEREEXRERLBESFE  AEENEESAAVAREEBAS
M 5% R o HHRB ERB1,000T - ZEFEZEERAEBZEEORERE -

During the year, the aggregate contributions made by the Group to the pension schemes were
approximately $750,000 (2000 — $197,000). During the year, there were no material forfeitures
available to offset the Group’s future contributions (2000 — Nil).

RAEE  AEBZEEHERRA£4750,000T (ZTZTZTHF : 197,0007T) ° AFERH - AEBRAE
BEMERKRZHR - RN —_ZFZF—F+_A=1+—BARL AREREEADRRZHER (TR
FE)
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29.

30.

BANKING FACILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

RITHEREEKRWR

As at 31st December, 2001, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of approximately $13,000,000
(2000 — $20,479,000) from several banks for overdrafts, loans, and trade financing. Unused facilities
as at the same date amounted to approximately $11,671,000 (2000 — $10,298,000). These facilities
were secured by pledges of the Group’s bank deposits of approximately $5,892,000 (2000 —
$9,217,000).

RZBZE—F+ A=+ AEEEFRITRERLTEL13,000,000T (ZFFZ 4 : 20,479,000
L) BREEX  EXRREZME - BB HAEAZIHMEELOR/I1,671,000 (ZTZE F :
10,298,0007T) ° Itk F @t & A L@ RITHF K 5,892,000t (ZF T F : 9,217,0007T) fEHE A -

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

LB EF

On 3rd May, 2000, the Company became the holding company of the other companies comprising
the Group pursuant to a group reorganisation (“the Reorganisation”) which included exchanges of
shares. The Reorganisation involved companies under common control, and the Company and its
subsidiaries resulting from the Reorganisation are regarded as a continuing group. Accordingly, the
Reorganisation has been accounted for on the basis of merger accounting, under which the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared as if the Company had been the holding company of the
other companies comprising the Group throughout the year ended 31st December, 2000, rather than
from the date on which the Reorganisation was completed.

RZZZZEFRA=H AR ARBE - RESEXIBRONEEEA([EA])  KALXEENEM QT
ZERRAF - BESEEA—EEZAR c ARALAEAMMAKNNEARERAFEEE - Bt -
BEHRNGHAMEERFEREE Bt FAMBERRECERBRARANRBE_ZETTF+_A=+
—BLFEEEASRECXRSEXRAEENEMARMNIZER AR - MIFAEATK B HEFH -

Certain of the 2000 comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation.

ETHE_ZTZEZFT _A=+ " BLFEZHLBEFEEN IR  UNEGBEAFEZREARS -




FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IR

RESULTS
E
Year Ended 31st December
BETZA=1t-BLFE
1998 1999 2000 2001
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000
—ANE —ANE —TITE —TT-F
FAT FAT FAT FAT
(Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 1)
(P aE2) (P aE2) (P aE2) (PEaE1)
Turnover EEE 21,625 32,823 63,816 49,355
Cost of sales HEKA (8,285) (11,328) (27,164) (19,473
62% 65% 57% 61%
Gross profit EM 13,340 21,495 36,652 29,882
Other revenue H A 33 168 103 0
Distribution & selling expenses % & ]t §58& S it (181) (706) (679) (1,535)
General & administrative —BERITHAX
expenses (10,576) (14,960) (42,765) (51,283)
Profit (Loss) from operations gand (58) 2,616 5,997 (6,689) (22,936)
Finance costs, net BEKTFE 48 144 629 383
Provision for impairment in BENRRENBER - - - (1,300)
value of investment in
an associate 89
Share of loss of associates SEBBEAFER (481) (761) (26) (54)
Profit (Loss) before taxation BRE AT R KA D&
and minority interest AR 3R R 75 Al A 2,183 5,380 (6,086) (23,907)
Taxation WA (492) (1,031) 161 (122)
Profit (Loss) before minority Rt L BRRE = AR 1,691 4,349 (5,925) (24,029)
interests (B#)
Minority interests LYRREREMLER 0 0 0 485
Profit (loss) attributable FR B B A R A
to Shareholders (B#8) 1,691 4,349 (5,925) (23,544
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HERE

ASSETS & LIABILITIES
EERER

As at 31st December

Rt+t=—RA=+—H

1999 2000 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

—AANFE —TTTHE —ET—F

THERT THERT THERT

Total non-current assets FRBEBELE 2,406 17,887 13,493
Total currents assets mEEELE 20,213 56,755 34,028
Total currents liabilities mEAELE (12,582) (18,382) (14,779)
Total non-current liabilities MR D ER R A (269) (282) (43)

excluding minority interests FRBELE

Minority interests DER R 0 0 (413)
Balance of shareholders’ equity — BX Rz 9,768 55,978 32,286

Notes:

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2001 are extracted Group’s

financial statements set out on pages 50 to 52 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for two years ended 31st December, 1998 and 1999 and assets and liabilities as at 31st

December, 1999 above were extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 10th May, 2000.

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the three years ended 31st December, 1999, 2000 and

2001 prepared as if the Company had been the holding company of the other companies comprising the Group

throughout the three years, rather than from the date on which the Recorganisation was completed.

B AL

AEEHE_FT-F+ A=+ RALFENERE BELEBAREZABRAFRFS0OEFS2ENAEEMBEREK -

P AEBRBEE - NANANFR-ANAAFH A=+ - BLEREFENXEEMELRR -AANF+ A=+ —HNE
ERAE WHEEARRR-_ZZZERATHNENHRKER -

AEBBZE—NAMNAMNF  ZZZTZEFR-IZFT—F+_A=+"BLE=-EAFENEE BEKERE
TRAR c MIFMEMETKBRITHE -

ZEFEME K BERAE BN

CTIEBERARAR




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
REBFAEEE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the annual general meeting of shareholders of Proactive Technology
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held at 14th Floor, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong on Friday, 26th April, 2002 at 3:00 p.m. for the following purposes:

1. to receive and consider the audited financial statements and the reports of the Directors and auditors

of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31st December, 2001;

2. to re-elect the retiring Directors and authorise the board of Directors to fix the Directors’ remuneration;

3. to re-appoint Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co as auditors and authorise the board of Directors to fix

their remuneration; and

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions (“Resolutions”) as

ordinary resolutions:

4. THAT:

(a)

(b)

subject to paragraph (b) and (c) of this Resolution, the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal
with additional shares of the Company or options, warrants, or similar rights to subscribe for
any shares and to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the

exercise of such powers, be and the same is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall be in addition to any other authorisation
given to the Directors and shall authorise the Directors on behalf of the Company during the
Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the

exercise of such powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

2B EPROACTIVE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED (BB #IE AR AF)) ([ARQAF]) EFi R F

ANEHEHATF=RFEBREPREHET L+ R THUERTIENBRTRIRBFREG -

ARAREMBARBE T —F+ _A=Z1T - HIEFEXERYBRAREFSRETERH

BRIEEIREESSTHEETSEEZ2H 2

ZFMA=+

1. HE
B

2.

3. R R

EEAFAGEMAREEESEERHMME

MERTHER BEINBEEBTIIAZR(DRBR]) R ERRF R

4. B

FERRBREOD)RCOBENART - — &M REEEEE TGN E BHB A ER E—FB‘()ﬁ@$
/A\EZ*tﬂﬁéﬁ CDABECE - BT REBARRBEND  ARFEHER THALATEATE
HEEDTAFELIBRTZERER  HERELBRE

REATEFTSNAMERIN  FRBQRZHABREEFSRRAQLANEHELBHAERE
RAAFREEIBETIFEREEAREERETELER NI IELEXRT2ERER  BELE
S5 B AR
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(c)

Notice of Annual General Meeting BRBFAERES

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to options or otherwise) and issued by the
Directors pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise than pursuant
to (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); or (ii) the exercise of any option which may be
granted under the share option scheme of the Company or any other option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted by the Company for the grant or issue to officers and/
or employees of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares or rights to acquire
shares of the Company; or (iii) any scrip dividend scheme or similar arrangements providing
for the allotment and issue of shares of the Company in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend
on shares of the Company in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company in force from
time to time or a specific authority granted by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting, or (iv) rights or an issue of shares of the Company upon the exercise of any subscription
rights attached to any existing warrants of the Company or any existing securities of the
Company which carry rights to subscribe for are convertible into shares of the Company, shall

not exceed the aggregate of:

(i) 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue on

the date of the passing of this Resolution; and

(i) (if the Directors are so authorised by a separate ordinary resolution of the shareholders
of the Company) the nominal amount of any share capital of the Company repurchased
by the Company subsequent to the passing of this Resolution (up to a maximum
equivalent to 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company

in issue on the date of the passing of this Resolution)

and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall be limited accordingly;

and

EEERBEARZRQ@BZIEMER  HTREEAERFXERHMRESTRER (TH 2
BRBEEAEBEEREMRE) 2RA  ETREEBOHEK (EER T  HGHETERE
ARRRMzBREFEXIEFSSAARTARIEEFAMBARSHAE R SESHEHHHE
TR KA R 2N SRR EREBERES S SBEURYE - i RIEAR QR A
AR ARBBRREBRRAGER TR ERERETREZERETARARNERZBRBOBRE Z
E ] A B B AT Bl S ML 2 BE B AT AR ¢ sk(iv)BC & ¥ AR Sk B 1T 8 78 & B) F fa] 38 B 4 38 P BT A o]
RER ZERFAHEAEINSBEB T —&F 28 :

(i) RRBEBBENAQRBDDHTROBMELTE20% &
(i) (WEEGEARRBRRBRE-BBINEBRABZEERR AQRARANRABERBEMED
MARFBRAEEAE (RZUARBFRBEBE AN ARFAD BITRAEEAE10%R

PR °

ERAZRQBRZHELETEALRR : &



(d)

Notice of Annual General Meeting & R 8 F X

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the date of the passing of this Resolution until

whichever is the earliest of:
(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within the next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the bye-laws of the Company, the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, or

any other applicable law of the Bermuda to be held; and

(iii)  the date passing of an ordinary resolution by the shareholders of the Company in

general meeting revoking, varying or renewing the authority given to the Directors by
this Resolution.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the Company open for a period fixed by the
Directors to holders of shares in the Company on the register of members of the Company on
a fixed record date in proportion to their holdings of such shares or class thereof (subject to
such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in
relation to fractional entitlements, or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the
law of, or the requirements of recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange applicable

to the Company).

AR R

[EEHEIERNAZRBRE ARETI =P F AL 2HH :

(i) RABTEBRRBFAGHERZA

(i) RARARZARMA - BRE- NN -—FREVERENEMBREBRENREARRA AR
BOUTERRBFREZHRERZA &

(iii) HEARBABRRAGLBBETBRAZRBERBIARBZRRTARRNEZTGRNZA

[ DIERARRA AR REESREE2HERN  MREELCHEBHBIRREMAZ KO
FAEAZBREERZHERUEPREZBHEROHZEZ(EAZ EETS R THREXRNE BF BN I
EAtRE 2 EMERRHISAEETLAEARATEERBRETABLSRIMIRERR RV ERE
HZHBRLEMRBMARR) -

2BE
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THAT:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Notice of Annual General Meeting BRBFAERES

subject to paragraph (b) and (c) of this Resolution, the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to repurchase its issued
shares, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and rules and requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise market on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as amended from time to time, be and the same is hereby

generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall be in addition to any other authorisation
given to the Directors and shall authorise the Directors on behalf of the Company during the
Relevant Period to procure the Company to repurchase its issued shares at a price determined

by the Directors;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which may be repurchased by the
Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution during the Relevant
Period shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of the passing of this Resolution and the said approval of this

Resolution shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the date of the passing of this Resolution until

whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

B

ERRBEODRCOBERRT  —UEREGFH S AESESREEHEN(EER TOTERAR
Blz—UEEN BRARBAZEHTRD  HEEBBERARBEREMENHEE ZERERE
RARBEEBAXGATERQFAAERIESF LTMRAUNEBRABRR TET
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(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of the Company, the Companies Act 1981 of

Bermuda, or any other applicable law of Bermuda to be held; and

(iii)  the date passing of an ordinary resolution by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting revoking, varying or renewing the authority given to the Directors of

the Company by this Resolution.

THAT condition upon the Resolution numbered 4 and 5 in the notice convening this meeting being
passed, the general mandate granted to the directors of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares of the Company pursuant to Resolution numbered 4 in the notice convening this
meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate
nominal value of shares repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to or in

accordance with the authority granted under the said Resolution numbered 5.

To transact any other business

By Order of the Board
Tsang Chi Hin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th March, 2002
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Principal Office:
14/F., Wing On House,
71 Des Vouex Road Central,

Hong Kong
Notes:
1. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a person or persons as his proxy or

proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.

2. To be valid, a form of proxy must be completed and returned to the Head Office and Principal Place of Business of
the Company as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the
meeting and in default thereof the form of proxy shall not be treated as valid. No instrument appointing a proxy

shall be valid after the expiry of 12 months from the date named in it as at the date of its execution.

3. Delivery of an instrument appointing a proxy shall not preclude a shareholder from attending and voting in person

at the meeting and in such event, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

4. In relation to proposed Resolution numbered 5 above, the Directors wish to state that they have no present
intention to repurchase any of its issued shares pursuant to the relevant mandate but consider that the mandate

will provide the Company the flexibility to make such repurchase when appropriate and beneficial to the Company.

5. An explanatory statement containing the information necessary to enable the shareholders of the Company to make
an informed decision to vote on the proposed resolution as required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited will be included in the

accompanying circular and will be despatched to shareholders together with 2001 Annual Report.
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Proactive Technology Holdings Limited
14/F., Wing On House,

No. 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
HAMEERBRAA
BEREPREHER7IRKLTEEKNE 1412

Tel No. 5 : (852) 2259-7300 Proactive Cyberspace (Shanghai) Limited

Fax No. & : (852) 2598-8290 Room 703, 705-8, 7th Floor, Ocean Tower,

550 Yanan East Road,

Shanghai, Zip 200001, P.R.C.
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4% : 200001

') Tel No. E&E © (86) 21-5385-4511
Room 2110, 21st Floor, Tengda Building, Fax No. £ E : (86) 21-5385-4522

No. 168 Xizhimenwai Street,
Haidian District,
Beijing 100044, P.R.C.
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BEIEAE21E 10 Room 703, 705-8, 7th Floor, Ocean Tower,
e 100044 550 Yanan East Road,
Tel No. ® 3% © (86) 10-6858-8218 Shanghai, Zip 200001, P.R.C.
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4R © 200001

Tel No. &5 : (86) 21-5385-4511

Fax No. & : (86) 21-5385-4522

Proactive Technology (Taiwan) Limited
5/F-6, No. 14, Lane 609, Sec. 5,
Chung Hsin Road,

San Chung City, .

Taipei Hsien, Taiwan.
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Tel No. E % © (886) 2-2278 7168

Fax No. & : (886) 2-2278 7169

Proactive Technology (Asia) Pte Ltd

150 South Bridge Road, #B1-10 Fook Hai Building,
Singapore 058727, Republic of Singapore

Tel No. 3% : (65) 746 9180
Fax No. f8& : (65) 746 8165

Proactive E-Commerce (Australia) Pty. Limited
19 Lyle Street, Pendle Hill,

NSW 2145, Australia

Tel No. & : (61) 404 089820




